
WORCESTER STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

Tuesday, June 11, 2024
4:00 P.M.

Wellness Center, Room 204
_______________________________________________________________________________________

Meeting Called By: Marina Taylor(Chair) Minutes: Nikki Kapurch

Board Members: Marina Taylor (Chair); Lisa Colombo (Vice-Chair); Lawrence Sasso (Vice-Chair); Karen Lafond; David

Tuttle; William Mosley; Dina Nichols; Amy Peterson; Maureen Power; Kaitlin Schott

WSU Staff: Barry Maloney; Ashlynn Allain; Kathy Eichelroth; Carl Herrin; Nikki Kapurch; Stacey Luster; Lois Wims
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

All documents considered to be drafts until discussed and/or approved by the Board

AGENDA
ITEM RESPONSIBLE ACTION

1. Administrative Business

A. Call to Order

B. Approval of the Minutes:

1. Full Board - April 9, 2024*
2. Academic & Student Development - April 9, 2024*
3. Nominating Committee - May 14, 2024*

Marina Taylor

1. vote required
2. vote required
3. vote required

2. Operational Excellence (OpEx) Presentation - 30 minutes including Q&A

A. Operational Excellence Powerpoint*

Kathy Eichelroth
Jonathan Walker A. Informational

3. Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Presentation - 15 minutes /Q&A

A. Advisory Committee for Affirmative Action and Equal Opportunity*

Edgar Moros
Charlotte Haller &
Shaylynne Shuler

A. Informational

4. Finance & Facilities Committee Report

A. Finance & Facilities Committee Packet*

Lisa Colombo
A. Informational and

vote required
5. Human Resources Committee Report

A. Human Resources Committee Meeting Packet*
Dina Nichols

A. Informational and
vote required

6. Nominating Committee Report
A. Nominating Committee Meeting Packet*
B. Approve the 2024- 2025 Slate of Officers*

Marina Taylor
A. Informational
B. vote required

7. Administrative Updates

A. Report of the Chair

I. 2024-2025 Meeting Schedule*
B. Report of the Student Trustee
C. Report of the President

I. President’s Update*

II. 3rd Year Strategic Plan Progress Report*

Marina Taylor

Kaitlin Schott

Barry Maloney

l. vote required

I. Informational
II. Informational

8. Executive Session 

A. Security Report Update

Marina Taylor

A. Informational

9. Adjournment Stephen Madaus 9. vote required

*Attachment































Operational Excellence 

Presentation to Board of Trustees

June 11, 2024



Worcester State University

Presentation Outline

2

Topic Slides

Operational Excellence – Overview and Objectives 3-4

Projects & Activities 5-9

Operational Excellence – Case Study 10-12

FSTF Update 13-19

Demonstration Projects Update 20-24

Future Activities & Projects 25-27

Questions & Conclusion 28



Worcester State University

Operational Excellence - Overview and Objectives

3

 Identify and implement strategies to increase revenue;

 Reduce costs;

 Introduce efficiencies; 

 Promote and apply lean, continuous improvement principles 
across all areas of campus.

These objectives are achieved through completing ‘FSTF’ or ‘Non-
FSTF’ projects, collectively referred to as Operational Excellence 
(“OpEx”) projects.



Worcester State University

FSTF vs non-FSTF Operational Excellence Projects

4

OpEx

FSTF 
Projects

Non-FSTF 
Projects

• 70 FSTF 
recommendations under 
evaluation

• Identifying which 
recommendations offer 
best opportunity for 
savings/revenue to 
address budget gap

• Organic projects, 
primarily focused on 
revenue, savings, and/or 
efficiencies

• Ideas generated 
internally by OpEx team 
or by members of WSU 
community (faculty, staff, 
students)



Worcester State University5

Operational Excellence Projects & Activities 
(Not originating from FSTF)



Worcester State University

Some examples of Non-FSTF Projects/Activities

 Website launch in April 2024*

 Development of new forms/processes, including:
• Grant Action Form
• Grant Budget Template
• VPA QR Code* 
• Non-Student Accounts Receivable – Data Collection

 Automation of travel forms to capture student involvement 
(compliance w/ Jeanne Clery Act - cost avoidance).

6



Worcester State University

Non-FSTF Projects/Activities

 Removed stale grant data from Colleague.  

 End-to-end grant process review, currently in planning stages.

 Attended BSU AI summit & currently evaluating opportunities 
to utilize AI in conjunction w/ AI working group, lead by Dr. 
Vescio.

 Currently identifying costs associated w/ alumni email.

7



Worcester State University

Operational Excellence Website (Intranet)

8

https://www.worcester.edu/mywoostate-facstaff/administration-finance/operational-excellence/



Worcester State University

Operational Excellence Website (Intranet) – Status Page 

9

FSTF Phase II status can be found on the Operational Excellence intranet page



Worcester State University10

Operational Excellence:

A Case Study



Worcester State University

Visual Performing Arts (“VPA”) Waivers: A Case Study

11

Problem:
 VPA students must complete paper waiver form, acknowledging 

that they are accepting risks associated w/ set design (power tools).
 VPA faculty must print, distribute, collect, track and store these 

paper-based forms each semester.

Solution: 
 Operational Excellence developed a solution using a QR code.  

Students scan & complete form on smart device.
 Enables VPA Faculty to track form completion.



Worcester State University

Visual Performing Arts Tool Use Forms: A Case Study

12

Benefits:

• Improved experience for faculty/students;

• Significant time saved for both faculty and students since paper 
forms no longer required;

• Forms are automatically stored on server (easy access when/if 
needed); and

• Savings due to efficiencies introduced: time savings, elimination 
of paper, toner, etc.



Worcester State University13

FSTF Update 



Worcester State University

FSTF Phase II Recommendation Status Update 

14

Operational Excellence 
Phase II Review and 

Consolidation

70 FSTF 
Phase II 
Items

Completed
▪ Complete
▪ Duplicative with other items

Future Consideration
▪ May St., Parking Garage, etc.
▪ Art studios to campus

In Process
▪ Ongoing Projects

(e. g. Starfish)

Pending Review
▪ Various items reviewed for 

complexity and financial benefit

18

10

9

33



Worcester State University

FSTF Pending Items

 33 Pending items—> 16 items ranked as either High or 
Medium estimated financial impact:

15

16 High or Medium items

7 High items 9 Medium items

Note: Remaining 17 items with low or no financial impact



Worcester State University

Priority: ‘High’ Impact Projects

16

Projects: 
• APR’s / EWC’s (2 recommendations): Resource Utilization
• Identify & Evaluate day faculty teaching grad courses as part of load:  Resource Utilization
• DGCE (3 recommendations ) - Course Scheduling, Marketing & Promotion, Online degree 

offerings:  Revenue Generation & Strategic 
• Summer Programs:  Revenue Generation 

These 7 projects are tied to the following strategic plan goals:
• Academic Excellence & Distinction
• Marketing & Enrollment
• Resources and Infrastructure 

Estimated 'High' Financial Impact Projects 

Project Category
Complexity 

Totals
High Medium

Resource Utilization 0 3 3

Revenue Generation 3 0 3

Strategic 1 0 1

Totals 4 3 7



Worcester State University

Priority – ‘Medium’ Financial Impact

17

Projects include:
• Explore server colocation partnerships
• Consider an alternative LMS (Blackboard – 240K/year)
• Update and test IT disaster recovery and business continuity plans
• Bookstore

These 9 projects are tied to the following strategic plan goals:
• Academic Excellence & Distinction
• Student  Support & Success
• Marketing & Enrollment
• Community Engagement and Public Good
• People and Culture 
• Resources and Infrastructure 

Estimated 'Medium' Financial Impact Projects 

Project Category
Complexity 

Totals
High Medium

Cost Avoidance 1 3 4
Operational Efficiencies 0 1 1

Revenue Generation 1 1 2
Strategic 1 1 2
Totals 3 6 9



Worcester State University

Low Financial Impact (lower priority) 

18

Estimated 'Low' Financial Impact Projects 

Project Category
Complexity 

Totals
High Medium Low

Cost Avoidance 0 0 1 1
Operational Efficiencies 1 2 5 8

Efficiencies Benefitting Students 1 2 3 6
Revenue Generation 1 0 0 1

Strategic 0 1 0 1
Totals 3 5 9 17

Projects include:
• ROI analysis of Laptop Depot 
• Academic Success to consider a committee for student advising
• Review of all advising software
• Creation of a public facing office to conduct survey for outside organizations

These 17 projects are tied to the following strategic plan goals:
• Academic Excellence & Distinction
• Student  Support & Success
• Marketing & Enrollment
• Community Engagement and Public Good
• People and Culture 
• Resources and Infrastructure 



Worcester State University

Rapid Improvement Events: Lessons Learned (for future projects) 

19

1

Emphasize a ‘data 
driven’ approach to 
identify projects (or 
issues) with highest 
return on investment

2

Smaller events (1-2 
day events or smaller)
- Actionable projects 
with targeted goals;
- Ability to implement 
solutions immediately

3

Repeat RIE to 
address ‘next step’ in 
the process



Worcester State University

Demonstration Projects Update – Course Scheduling

Demonstration Projects:  Course Scheduling (FSTF #1, 2):
 Developed new draft Course Scheduling manual for Dept. Chairs
 Formalized course exemption/exception process for optimization and 

tracking of results
 Course scheduling survey to Chairs and students
 Google Drive for Chairs
 Course scheduling is a more integrated, visible scheduling process

Next Steps: 
 Review costs associated with non-instructional activities
 Mapping of costs associated with Full-Time faculty assigned through 

DGCE
 Ongoing semester by semester data reviews

20



Worcester State University

UPDATED W/ UNDUPLICATED HEADCOUNT

21

Takeaways:  WSU ‘right sizing’ 
course offerings to better align 
with headcount.

• 3.2% Decrease in enrollment 
(unduplicated headcount) 

• 9.4% decrease in sections
• 6.8% decrease in F/T sections
• 16.5% decrease in Adjunct 

sections.
• 76% ‘fill rate’ in 22SP vs. 79% 

in 24SP (seats filled)

755

684

555
517

200
167

3755 3635

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

22 Spring 24 Spring

Spring 22 vs. Spring 24

Sections F/T Sections

Adjunct Sections Unduplicated Headcount



Worcester State University22

 Students surveyed in December, 23.  
Approximately 400 responses. Overall 
positive results from students on views of 
Course Scheduling process

 Majority of students would like ability to  
‘self-plan’ courses for multiple semesters.  
Planning is currently underway in regards 
to resources, timing and execution of 
implementation.  

84%

98% 82%

Demonstration Projects Update – Course Scheduling



Worcester State University

Demonstration Projects Update: Early Support 

23

Rapid Improvement Event: Starfish (FSTF #27)
• Rebranded Starfish program as Early Support
• Updated website and logo
• Communicated benefits to Chairs and developed user guidelines

Improved retention: 1.9% higher as compared to prior year 



Worcester State University24

Next Steps – Early Support:

 Incorporate Early Support into student orientation & continued targeted 
outreach to students and faculty;

 Nearing completion of information integration into Early Support. This will 
allow Early Support to have additional student information in order to 
score risk.  Feature we pay for but have not been able to utilize to date;

 Progress surveys, facilitated via Early Support are now represented on 
academic calendar (Dean Pottle submitted a policy, that has gone through 
AUC); and

 Additional planned activities to be managed by Retention include: 
awareness sessions to students, ongoing monitoring of usage, etc.

Demonstration Projects Update: Early Support 



Worcester State University25

Operational Excellence
Proposed Future Activities



Worcester State University

Operational Excellence Other Projects on the Horizon

 Review costs associated with non-instructional activities

 DGCE Review: Form project team with DGCE to consider 
FSTF Phase II recommendations

• Mapping of costs associated with Full-Time faculty 
assigned through DGCE

 Grants: work with OSGR & new Director to document 
process and streamline where possible

 Alumni email retention project  

26



Worcester State University

Operational Excellence Proposed Future Activities FY25

June-Sept 24
• Campus discussion/listening sessions;
• Work with Marketing & Communication on Operational Excellence 

engagement plan: posters, QR codes, etc.
• Develop universal methodology to quantify savings

Oct-Dec 24
• Network with other higher education institutions also involved in 

Operational Excellence and share knowledge
• Develop savings ‘dashboard’ for OpEx website. 

Jan-Jun 25
• Develop and conduct internal training for departments who seek to 

leverage lean/process improvement in their day-to-day operations; build 
excitement about OpEx across Campus

• Explore feasibility of internship program for WSU students within OpEx in 
conjunction with Business Dept.

27



Worcester State University

Operational Excellence

28

Operational Excellence Contacts

Jonathan Walker            jwalker@worcester.edu
Kiran Chamankar  kchamankar@worcester.edu
Chris Korites ckorites@worcester.edu

Questions?

mailto:jwalker@worcester.edu
mailto:kchamankar@worcester.edu
mailto:ckorites@worcester.edu


Advisory Committee for Equal 
Opportunity, Diversity and 

Affirmative Action
Report to the Board of Trustees, June 11, 2024

Charlotte Haller and Shay Shuler



Committee Members

Marc Wagoner

LJ Dawson, Professor, Department of Psychology
Telese Forbes, Alumna and Assistant Director of the 

Worcester State University Graduate School

Karly Kwasigroch, Instructor/Professor of Nursing

Dean Bowen
Assistant 

Director/Fitness 
Manger, Wellness 

Center

Midaly Carrasquillo
WSU MA '21, 

Assistant Director 
of the Urban 

Action Institute.

Shay Shuler

Health Sciences

Katey Palumbo 
Director of 
International 
Programs and the 
Senior International 
Officer at WSU

Charlotte Haller
Professor and Chair, 

Department of 

History & Political 

Science

Co-Chairs

Ex-officio members  
Edgar Moros & Stacey Luster

Assistant Professor, 
Department of 

Health Sciences

Associate Professor, 
Department of 

Psychology



Committee Responsibilities 
(as required by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts):

Recommend Evaluate Inform

To make recommendations to the 
President as well as to respective 
campus and governance committees 
concerning effective implementation 
of the Universities’ Equal Opportunity, 
Diversity and Affirmative Action Plan;

To evaluate institutional 
compliance with respect to all 
equal opportunity, diversity and 
affirmative action programs and 
to recommend appropriate 
strategies to the President; and

To keep informed as to federal 
and state laws and regulations as 
well as institutional policies 
impacting equal opportunity, 
diversity and affirmative action.

To serve as an Advisory Group to the President;



We focus our attention 
on two key areas:

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t.

Retention



We care about recruitment and retention of ALANA/BIPOC, LGBTQIA+, 
disabled, and other traditionally underserved faculty and staff 

because we know that the recruitment, retention, and success of 
students from traditionally underserved groups requires it.



In 2023, 25% of 
Worcester State 
staff identified as 
BIPOC/ALANA.

WSU’s student 
body is 37% 
BIPOC/ALANA

At public 4-year 
schools in the U.S., 
39% of 
undergraduate 
students were 
BIPOC/ALANA



2022-2023

2023-2024

Lorem ipsum 
dolor sit amet, 

consectetur 
adipiscing elit. 

We worked to refine the position, and collaborated with 
current staff leaders on DEI issues (Laxmi Bissoondial, 
Alison Park, Fran Manocchio and Rachel Graddy) to 
develop a workable proposal for a Staff Diversity 
Navigator that would meet the needs of BIPOC/ALANA 
staff.

With the sponsorship of Julie 
Kazarian, the position was 
requested, but was not 
incorporated into the final 
budget.

Current Focus:

>3 years, the Advisory Committee for 
Affirmative Action and Equal Opportunity has 
recommended that a Diversity Support 
Navigator position be created.  This position 
would be focused on engaging with, supporting, 
mentoring, and helping to retain staff of color.



DIVERSITY SUPPORT NAVIGATOR POSITION

Guide staff to resources, support 
a sense of belonging, create 

connections among employees, 
and advocate for the needs of 

BIPOC/ALANA staff

Focused upon the intersectional 
needs of BIPOC/ALANA staff

Recruitment & Retention

Needs Focused

Support

Staff 
Navigator

Collaboration
Collaborate with work with the Faculty 
Fellow for Diversity to find areas of 
shared interest and concern

Housed in Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

Should be a full-time position, 
focused upon retention. Might 

be combined with duties in 
recruitment in order to get to 

full time status.



When we recruit and retain diverse faculty and staff, 
we can better recruit and retain our diverse students. 

We are making 
strides in recruitment 
– in fact, recruitment 
of Latinx and African 
American students 
are keeping our 
enrollments relatively 
steady in volatile 
times.

Source:  https://www.mass.edu/datacenter/PMRS/worcester.asp



When it comes to retention of historically 
underrepresented groups, we need to do better.

Source:  https://www.mass.edu/datacenter/PMRS/worcester.asp



Academic 
Excellence

Engaged 
Citizenship

Open 

Exchange 

of Ideas

Civility and 
Integrity

And be willing to commit to the resources 
needed to live up to our stated values.

Diversity  

&

Inclusiveness



Thank you for your 
attention to this 
important work!

Questions or 
Comments?



References

National Center for Education Statistics. (2023). Characteristics of Postsecondary Faculty. Condition of 
Education. U.S. Department of Education, Institute of Education Sciences. Retrieved August 30, 2023

Worcester State Factbook, 2023.

“Performance Measurement Report:  Worcester State University,” DHE Data Center, 
https://www.mass.edu/datacenter/PMRS/worcester.asp  

Matias, J.N., Lewis, N.A. & Hope, E.C. US universities are not succeeding in diversifying faculty. Nat 
Hum Behav 6, 1606–1608 (2022). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41562-022-01495-4

https://www.mass.edu/datacenter/PMRS/worcester.asp


 
 
 

WORCESTER STATE UNIVERSITY 
  BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 FINANCE & FACILITIES MEETING 
    Tuesday, June 11, 2024 

  3:00 P.M. 
WELLNESS CENTER, ROOM 204 

Meeting Called By:   Lisa Colombo (Chair) Minutes: Nikki Kapurch 
 
Board Members:      Lisa Colombo (Chair); Lawrence Sasso (Vice-Chair); Dina Nichols; Amy Peterson     
 
WSU Staff:                 Barry Maloney; : Ashlynn Allain;Kathy Eichelroth; Carl Herrin; Nikki Kapurch; Stacey  
            Luster 

 
All documents considered to be drafts until discussed and/or approved by the Board 

 

AGENDA 
ITEM RESPONSIBLE ACTION 

1. Administrative Business 
A. Call to Order 
B. Approval of the Minutes: 

1. Finance & Facilities Committee - April 09, 2024* 

 
Lisa Colombo   

 
 
   

1. vote required  

2. Finance & Facilities Committee Report 
A. FY 2025 Comprehensive University Budget*   
B. FY 2024 Q3 Trust Fund Reports* 

Lisa Colombo  
Kathy Eichelroth 

 
A. vote required 

4. Administrative Updates 
A. Other Business  

 
Lisa Colombo  

  
 

  5.    Adjournment Lisa Colombo   5. vote required 

           
*Attachments 

 





























































































































































































WORCESTER STATE UNIVERSITY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
Tuesday, June 11, 2024 

2:00 P.M. 
Wellness Center, Room 204 

Meeting Called By:     Dina Nichols (Chair) Minutes: Nikki Kapurch 

Board Members: Dina A. Nichols (Chair), Maureen Power (Vice Chair), Amy Peterson, David Tuttle 

WSU Staff:         Barry Maloney; Ashlynn Allain; Nikki Kapurch; Stacey Luster  

All documents considered to be drafts until discussed and/or approved by the Board

AGENDA 
ITEM RESPONSIBLE ACTION 

1. Administrative Business
A. Call to Order
B. Approval of the Minutes: April 4, 2024*

Dina Nichols A. 
B. vote required

2. Human Resources  Committee Report
A. Theriault, Henry - Promotion Letter 2024*

a. Letter of Support*
b. Proposed Associate Provost Job Description*
c. Resume*

B. Division of Academic Affairs Organizational Chart*

Dina Nichols A. vote required
a. Informational
b. Informational
c. Informational
B. Informational

3. Adjournment Dina Nichols 3. vote required

*Attachments

































 

 

NON-UNIT JOB DESCRIPTION 

Position Number: 00XXXXXX 

Reports to: 00XXXXXX 

Incumbent: Vacant 

Department:  

 

 

OFFICIAL TITLE:    Associate Provost  

 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED:   Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs 

      

SUPERVISION EXERCISED: 

1. CTL:  Faculty Development Center (Faculty Director, FT Staff Associate Faculty Development 

Specialist, Faculty Fellow for Equity, and advisory committee) 

2. Academic Success Center (FT Administrative Director, 5 FT staff, and 1+ PT staff) 

3. Library (Administrative Executive Director and 13 FT staff) 

4. International and Domestic Study Away Programs (Administrative Director, 1 FT staff, and 1 PT staff) 

5. Academic Affairs 

6. Commonwealth Honors Program 

7. First-Year Seminar Program (Faculty Director and advisory committee) 

8. General Education Program (Faculty Director and advisory committee) 

9. Institutional Review Board (Faculty Chair and members) 

10. Institutional Animal Care and Use Committee (Faculty Chair) 

11. Research Integrity Officer (Faculty) 

12. Currents in Teaching and Learning (Faculty Editor and editorial board) 

13. Human Rights Center 

14. Academic Judicial Board (Staff Chair, 2 faculty, and 2 students) 

15. Academic Judicial Board of Appeals (Serve as Chair, 2 faculty, and 2 students) 

16. Supervisory assignments as determined by the President and Provost 

 

General Statement of Duties:   

 

Responsibilities: 

(E) = Essential 

 

1. (E) Serves as chief advisor to the Provost. 

2. (E) Leads initiatives and projects as determined by the President and Provost. 

3. (E) Serves as active member of the President’s Cabinet. 

4. (E) Serves on the Provost’s Leadership Team, providing support and advice as determined by the 

Provost. 

5. (E) Responsible for academic honesty procedures and structures, including periodic revision of the 

Academic Honesty Policy, oversight the formal processes, the Academic Central File, and faculty and 

student support. 

6. (E) Responsible for organizing the annual student Celebration of Scholarship and Creativity. 

7. (E) Responsible for support of University’s participation in the annual Massachusetts Undergraduate 

Research Conference. 

8. (E) Serves as Institutional Official for US Federal grants. 

9. (E) Responsible for research integrity across the University. 

10. (E) Responsible for the Academic Affairs internal grant program, including the Summer Undergraduate 

Research Grants, Faculty Research and Creative Activity Grants, Teaching and Learning Innovation 

Grants, Advising Innovation Grants, and Graduate Student Research Travel and Publication Grants. 

11. (E) Responsible for evaluation of student appeals of academic policies and procedures. 



 

 

NON-UNIT JOB DESCRIPTION 

Position Number: 00XXXXXX 

Reports to: 00XXXXXX 

Incumbent: Vacant 

Department:  

12. (E) Responsible for helping identify key needs and opportunities and co-planning and co-implementing 

faculty development and support programs related to teaching, research/creative activity, and career 

progress, through the CTL:  Faculty Development Center and in other ways. 

13. (E) Responsible for oversight of the general education program. 

14. (E) Responsible for oversight of academic support services through the Academic Success Center. 

15. (E) Responsible for oversight of first-year student academic program. 

16. (E) Coordinates administrative aspect of course evaluation process. 

17. (E) Chairs Research Advisory Board and oversees academic research development and support 

18. (E) Academic Affairs liaison to Office of Grants and Sponsored Research 

19. (E) Responsible for mentoring and professional development support for all direct reports. 

20. (E) As directed by the Provost, represents the Division of Academic Affairs to other divisions. 

21. (E) As directed by the Provost or President, represents the University to external entities. 

22. (E) Serves as administrative representative on committees determined by the President and Provost. 

23. (E) Responsible for oversight of Library planning and operations. 

24. (E) Responsible for oversight of International and Domestic Study Away Program planning and 

operations. 

25. (E) Under joint supervision by the Vice President for University Advancement and the Provost, 

contributes to the oversight of external grant operations of the University. 

26. Supports curriculum and program development initiatives across the Division of Academic Affairs, as 

requested. 

27. Serves as Academic Affairs liaison to Enrollment Management Committee, Student Affairs (including 

the Counseling Center, Student Accessibility Services, the Office of Community Standards, the Title IX 

Office, the Sexual Assault Violence Education program, and/or the Student Intervention Team). 

28. Participates in crisis management planning and execution for the Division of Academic Affairs and the 

University as a whole. 

29. (E) Demonstrates civility and professional, customer-service oriented behavior, worthy of emulation by 

other staff and students. 

30. (E) Responsible for contributing to the WSU Strategic Plan. 

31. (E) Responsible for contributing to Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action objectives, including serving 

on committees and planning and implementing DEIJ-focused projects. 

32. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 

Required Qualifications: 

 

1. Earned doctorate in an academic discipline.  
2. Significant documented record of excellence as a faculty member and as an academic administrator (e.g., as 

department or division chair, dean, assistant or associate vice president). 

3. Experience with and knowledge of research and creative activity support and oversight. 

4. Experience with and knowledge of assessment, strategic planning, and related activities. 

5. Experience with and knowledge of budgeting and fiscal oversight. 

6. Substantial experience with student support. 

7. Substantial experience working cross-divisionally in a higher education setting. 

8. Commitment to Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice regarding race and other categories.  

9. Strong organizational and communication skills, commitment to quality education and ethical standards, 

ability and desire to work collegially in a collective bargaining environment, and familiarity with current 

trends and innovations in higher education. 

 



 

 

NON-UNIT JOB DESCRIPTION 

Position Number: 00XXXXXX 

Reports to: 00XXXXXX 

Incumbent: Vacant 

Department:  

 

 

 

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have received a copy of this job description.  I understand that I must be 

able to perform the essential functions of my position with or without reasonable accommodation.  Questions 

relating to my responsibilities or need for accommodation, now or in the future, will be directed to my 

supervisor and/or Human Resources. 

 

 

___________________________________________  __________________________ 

Employee Signature       Date   

 

 

___________________________________________  __________________________ 

Supervisor or Human Resources Signature    Date 

 



 

 Henry C. Theriault 
 
 

Office of Academic Affairs      +1 508-929-8612 (direct) 
Worcester State University      htheriault@worcester.edu 
Shaughnessy Administration Building Room 364   Pronouns:  he, him, his 
486 Chandler Street         
Worcester, MA 01602 USA     
 
EDUCATION 

• University of Massachusetts at Amherst:  Ph.D. in Philosophy, 1999 
• Princeton University:  B.A. in English, 1988 

 
 
SELECTED PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

• Harvard University Graduate School of Education:  Institute for Educational 
Management, July 15-27, 2018 

 
 
ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP EXPERIENCE 
 
Worcester State University:  Associate Vice President for Academic Affairs, July 1, 2017-
Present 

• Activities include/have included: 
• Leading campus-wide process for first redesign of the general education system in 

15 years 
• Leading campus-wide process for replacement of 2007 Academic Honesty Policy 
• Advisory role in leadership decisions of Academic Affairs, under the Provost 
• Member of WSU President’s Cabinet 
• Executive Sponsor of Net Revenue Subgroup of the Financial Sustainability Task 

Force and member of the steering committee for the Financial Sustainability Task 
Force process 

• Chair of President’s Cabinet’s Innovation Working Group 
 Responsible for generating and soliciting innovative ideas to address key 

challenges or open up new opportunities for the university 
• Co-chair of Standard 6:  Teaching, Learning, and Scholarship for Worcester 

State’s self-study for accreditation by the New England Commission of Higher 
Education (NECHE) 

• Member of Campus Climate Committee focused on diversity and inclusion and its 
Implementation Subcommittee 

• Co-leader of the Worcester State Racial Equity and Justice Institute’s (REJI) 
campus team 

• Member of student, faculty, staff, administrative, and Board of Trustees team 
charged with implementing the recommendations of WSU’s 2021-22 equity audit 

• Four annual terms as member of Academic Policies governance committee 

mailto:htheriault@worcester.edu


Henry C. Theriault - Page 2 
 

• One-year term as member of Student Affairs governance committee 
• Currently serving second annual term on Undergraduate Curriculum governance 

committee 
• Significant oversight and operational duties for Academic Affairs budget areas, 

which includes extensive liaising with members of the Administration and 
Finance Division 

• Currently supervise Honors Program, Center for the Study of Human Rights, 
Forensic Sciences Minor, Center for Teaching and Learning, First-Year 
Experience Program, Liberal Arts and Sciences Curriculum (general education), 
Institutional Review Board, Institutional Animal Care and Use Committee, 
Research Integrity Officer, and Academic Success Center, which provides 
extensive tutoring, advising, and other support for students 
 11 direct reports and more than 10 indirect reports 

• Chaired Interdisciplinary Studies Department Implementation Committee 
• Provost’s designee for academic policy student appeals 
• Oversight and coordination of academic honesty functions, including maintaining 

the Academic Central File for recording of violations and periodic review in order 
to determine if further action is warranted 

• Member of multiple student conduct hearing boards 
• Step 1 Grievance Hearing Office – hear, investigate, negotiate, and render 

decisions regarding allegations of violations the collective bargaining agreement 
made by faculty members or their union chapter 

• Chair of Research Advisory Board and point person for expansion of faculty and 
student research infrastructure 

• Institutional Official 
• Coordination and on-going redevelopment of Faculty Scholarship and Creative 

Activity Grant, Teaching and Learning Innovation Grant, Summer Undergraduate 
Research Grant, Advising Innovation Grant, and Graduate Student Research 
Travel and Publication Grant programs 

• Co-redesigned and co-run Provost’s Travel Fund for faculty research and 
creativity activities 

• Cowriter and writer of a number of external program grant applications 
• Lead organizer of the Celebration of Scholarship and Creativity, an annual event 

showcasing research of undergraduate and graduate students 
• Member of Enrollment Management Committee and co-chair of its Retention 

Subcommittee 
• Chair of Academic Ceremonies Committee, which plans and organizes the 

undergraduate and graduate commencements, academic convocation, and 
academic achievement awards ceremony 

• Represents the Office of Academic Affairs on the campus-wide Student 
Intervention Team, which coordinates approaches to support for at-risk students 
facing mental health, behavioral, and similar challenges 

• Serve on Sexual Assault and Violence Education Committee, the Mental Health 
Committee, and the Title IX Committee 

• Serve as Title IX investigator 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 3 
 

• Oversee student evaluations of faculty campus-wide 
• For 2020-2021, served on COVID-19 Response Committee 

• Led faculty training and support initiative for the Spring 2020 transition to 
distance learning and subsequent COVID-19 affected aspects of teaching 

• Chaired 2019-20 Associate Dean for Distance and Global Education Search 
Committee 

• Served on 2024 Director of the Office of Grants and Sponsored Research 
• Served on 2017 Assistant Vice President for Planning and Assessment Search 

Committee 
• Numerous other continuing and temporary activities and duties assigned by the 

Provost or President 
 
Worcester State University:  Department Chairs’ Council, 2010-17; Chair of Chairs’ 
Council, 2014-15; Acting Vice-Chair, Spring 2012 

• Elected Chair and Vice-Chair by vote of all WSU department chairs 
• As Chair of the Chairs’ Council, was member of President’s Cabinet 

 
Worcester State University:  Chair, Philosophy Department, 2010-13 and 2013-16 terms; 
Acting Chair, Spring 2007 

• Coordinated development and implementation of department’s first assessment plan 
• Coordinated 2010-11 program review 

 
Worcester State University:  Liberal Studies Major Working Group, January 2013 to May 

2014 
 
Worcester State University:  Online Learning Committee, January to October 2013 
 
Worcester State University:  Chair, Integrity Subcommittee, New England Association of 

Schools and Colleges 2012 Review of WSU, 2010 to 2012 
 
Worcester State University:  Dean of Humanities and Social Sciences Search Committee, 

October to November 2010 
 
Worcester State University Center for the Study of Human Rights:  Coordinator, Fall 1999 

to Spring 2007 and Steering Committee Member Fall 2007 to Present 
• Spearheaded revival of the Center over the Spring and Summer of 1999, after 10-year 

dormancy 
• Principal organizer of a series of human rights programs for the academic and broader 

communities featuring a number of nationally- and internationally-respected scholars and 
leaders 

• Collaborated with various WSU programs, departments, and offices, including the Office 
of Diversity, the Honors Program, the Women’s Studies Program, and others 

• Programs included dozens of panels and lectures, a number of multi-panel conferences 
and symposia, and a play, on a range of human rights issues 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 4 
 

• Helped coordinate development of the WSU Dennis Brutus Collection, the largest 
collection of Brutus’ papers in the world 

 
Worcester State University:  All College Committee Governance Committee, 2003-04, 

2004-05, 2005-06, and 2006-07 academic years 
• Chaired ACC 2004-05 (elected by committee members) 

 
Worcester State University:  Academic Policies Governance Committee, 2002-03 academic 

year 
 
 
TEACHING EXPERIENCE 
 
Worcester State University Philosophy Department:  Fall 1998 to Present 

• Assistant Professor, 1998-2004, Associate Professor 2004-09, Tenured September 2005, 
Full Professor 2009-2017, Adjunct Professor, 2017-Present 

• Received George I. Alden Excellence in Teaching Award in 2016 
• Over full career at Worcester State, including summer and winter sessions, have taught 

312 three-credit undergraduate course sections, with two to five preparations per semester 
when serving as a full-time faculty member 

• Faculty advisor for 19 students presenting research papers at various Annual 
Massachusetts Statewide Undergraduate Research Conference (2017 – 7 papers, 2015 – 1 
paper, 2010 – 2 papers, 2005 – 1 joint paper, 2004 – 1 paper, 2003 – 2 papers, 2000 – 1 
paper, and 1999 – 1 joint paper) 

• Faculty advisor for numerous student presentations at the April 2024, 2023, 2022, 2021, 
2020, 2017, 2015, and 2014 WSU Celebration of Scholarship and Creativity; advised and 
coordinated four-student philosophy panels at the April 2012 and April 2011 WSU 
Celebration of Scholarship and Creativity; and advised and coordinated participation of 
student researcher on April 18, 2012, genocide studies panel featuring three scholars in 
the field 

• Strong record of graduate, law, and medical school student placement success 
 
Gratz College:  Fall 2023 to Present 

• Dissertation committee member 
 
Stockton University Master of Arts in Holocaust and Genocide Studies Program:  Spring 
2019 to Fall 2020 

• Master’s thesis committee member 
 
Australian National University:  Spring 2013 

• Outside reader for Master’s thesis 
 
Clark University Department of History and Strassler Center for Holocaust and Genocide 
Studies:  Spring 2019 to Present, Spring 2008, Spring 2002, and Fall 2000 

• Currently serving on Ph.D. dissertation committee 
• As Visiting Professor, taught an undergraduate course on the Armenian Genocide 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 5 
 

• Second reader for 2002 Holocaust and Genocide Studies undergraduate honors thesis 
 
University of Massachusetts at Amherst Philosophy Department:  Fall 1991 to Spring 1995 

• Graduate Teaching Associate and Assistant 
• Taught 5 and assisted in 3 three-credit undergraduate philosophy courses 

 
 
RESEARCH FELLOWSHIP 
 
Australian Research Council Centre for Excellence in Policing and Security Visiting 
Scholar, Griffith University, Mt. Gravatt Campus, Queensland, Australia:  June to July 
2013 

• In residence to research the positive and negative impacts of humanitarian military 
intervention on the security of women and girls through case study analysis 

 
 
SCHOLARLY LEADERSHIP and EDITORIAL POSITIONS 
 
International Association of Genocide Scholars:  1999 to Present 

• President (elected), 2017-19 and 2019-21 terms 
• Advisory Board (elected), 2007-09 and 2009-11 terms 
• Resolutions Committee, 2023-25 term 
• Co-organized all aspects of fully in-person 2023 biennial conference in Barcelona 

 250 participants 
 
Genocide Studies International, Co-Editor:  April 2013 to Present 

• https://www.utpjournals.com/Genocide-Studies-International.html  
 
International Criminal Law Review, special issue:  “Armenian Genocide Reparations,” 14:2 
(2014):  Guest Editor 
 
Armenian Review, special issue:  “The New Global Reparations Movement,” 53:1-4 
(Spring-Winter 2012):  Guest Editor 

• Developed plan for special issue based on 2005 international conference on reparations I 
co-organized at Worcester State University 

 
Genocide Studies and Prevention, Co-Editor:  August 2007 to December 2012 
 
 
SELECTED EVENT ORGANIZING 
 
International Association of Genocide Scholars “Environmental Degradation and Mass 
Violence” Panel Series (virtual) 
 
“Mass Media in Genocide Prevention:  The Promise and Peril of the Digital Age” Virtual 
Discussion, December 9, 2020 

https://www.utpjournals.com/Genocide-Studies-International.html


Henry C. Theriault - Page 6 
 

 
“Black Lives Matter – for Armenians” Panel, Virtual, July 20, 2020 
 
“Racial Injustice and Responsibility” Panel, Virtual, June 23, 2020 
 
International Association of Genocide Scholars 14th Biennial Conference:  American 
University of Phnom Penh, July 14-18, 2019 
 
Centennial Committee of America, Eastern Region:  “Responsibility 2015” global 
conference on genocide, Marriot Marquis Times Square, New York City, March 13-15, 
2015 
 
Worcester State University and Clark University:  “Manufacturing Denial:  The Assault on 
Scholarship and Truth” lecture and conference, October 24-25, 2014 
 
Worcester State University:  “Whose Debt?  Whose Responsibility?” global symposium on 
reparations, December 10, 2005 
 
 
PUBLICATIONS:  BOOKS AND REPORT 
 
Justice after Atrocity, co-edited with Chunhui Peng, in process 
 
The United Nations Genocide Convention:  An Introduction, co-authored with Samuel Totten 
(Toronto:  University of Toronto Press, 2019) 
 
Controversies in the Field of Genocide Studies, Vol. 11 of Genocide:  A Critical Bibliographic 
Review book series, co-edited with Samuel Totten and Elisa von Joeden-Forgey (New York:  
Transaction Publishers, 2017) 
 
Legal Avenues for Armenian Genocide Reparations, Editor, Vol. 8 of the Khatchig Babikian 
Literary Fund book series (Antelias, Lebanon:  Armenian Catholicosate Printing House, 2015) 

• Book publication of the International Criminal Law Review (14:2) special issue on 
“Armenian Genocide Reparations” (2015) 

 
Resolution with Justice:  Reparations for the Armenian Genocide – The Report of the Armenian 
Genocide Reparations Study Group, co-authored with Alfred de Zayas, Jermaine O. McCalpin, 
and Ara Papian, March 2015 

• 150-page study of the legal, historical, political, and ethical dimensions of the issue of 
reparations for the 1915 Armenian Genocide 

• www.armeniangenocidereparations.info  
 
 
PUBLICATIONS:  CHAPTERS AND ARTICLES 
 

http://www.armeniangenocidereparations.info/


Henry C. Theriault - Page 7 
 

“Taner Akçam as Scholar-Activist and Armenian-Turkish Relations,” in Documenting the 
Armenian Genocide:  Essays in Honors of Taner Akçam, edited by Thomas Kühne, Marc A. 
Mamigonian, and Mary Jane Rein, Palgrave Studies in the History of Genocide Book Series 
(Cham, Switzerland:  Palgrave, 2024) 
 
“The Ethics of Genocide Scholarship and New Trends in Rhetorical Manipulation in Genocide 
Studies,” special issue “In Honour of Dr. Herb Hirsch,” Genocide Studies International 14:1 
(2022):  65-90 
 
“Chapter 6:  Consequences,” in Elisa von Joeden-Forgey, Editor, A Cultural History of Genocide 
in the Era of Total War (1914-1945), Volume 5 of A Cultural History of Genocide book series, 
edited by Paul Bartrop (London:  Bloomsbury, 2021) 
 
“Chapter 1:  Is Denial the Final Stage?  Consolidation and the Metaphysical Dimensions of 
Denial,” in John Cox, Amal Khoury, and Sarah Minslow, Editors, Denial:  The Final Stage of 
Genocide (Oxford:  Routledge, 2021) 
 
“Rape as a Tool of Genocide or Genocide as a Tool of Rape?  Conceptual Distinctions and the 
Realities of Perpetration,” in Carol Rittner, Editor, Women, the Holocaust, and Genocide:  The 
Ethel LeFrak Holocaust Education Conference Proceedings (Greensburg, PA:  Seton Hill 
University, 2019)  
 
“Denial:  David Irving, and the Complexities of Representing a Holocaust Denier,” co-authored 
with Kirril Shields and Ted Nannicelli, Genocide Studies and Prevention:  An International 
Journal 12:3 (2018) 
 
“Genocide Structures the Very World We Live In,” in Last Lectures on the Prevention and 
Intervention of Crimes against Humanity and Genocide, edited by Samuel Totten (New York:  
Routledge, 2018) 
 
“The Global Reparations Movement and Meaningful Resolution of the Armenian Genocide,” in 
Opposing Viewpoints:  Reparations (Farmington Hills, MI:  Greenhaven Publishing/Cengage-
Gale, 2017) 

• Chapter was originally published in the Armenian Weekly Magazine (April 2010) 
 
“Against the Grain:  Critical Reflections on the State and Future of Genocide Scholarship,” 
Revista de Estudios sobre Genocidio (“Journal of Genocide Studies”) 8:11 (2016) 

• Spanish translation of the 2016 updated revision of 2012 article from Genocide Studies 
and Prevention 7:1 

 
Chapter section essays on “Prevention and Justice” and “Schools, Colleges, and Universities,” in 
Teaching about Rape in War and Genocide, edited by Carol Rittner and John Roth (New York:  
Palgrave Macmillan, 2015) 
 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 8 
 

“Out of the Shadow of War and Genocide,” in Advancing Genocide Studies:  Personal Accounts 
and Insights from Scholars in the Field, edited by Samuel Totten (Piscataway, NJ:  Transaction 
Publishers, 2015) 
 
“The Victims’ Struggle,” Politique Internationale, special issue:  “A Hundred Years Ago . . . the 
Armenian Genocide,” 147 (Spring 2015) 

• Other contributors to the special issue include then-French President François Hollande 
• Article published in both English and French (“Le Combat des Victimes”) 

 
“Hoşgörüden eşitliğe:  Türklerle Ermeniler arasındaki güç ilişkilerini bir sivil haklar modeli 
aracılığıyla değiştirmek” (“From Tolerance to Equality:  Changing the Power Relations Between 
Turks and Armenians Through a Civil Rights Model”), Kaldıraç 164 (February 2015) 
 
“Repairing the Irreparable:  ‘Impossible’ Harms and the Complexities of ‘Justice,’” in Prácticas 
Genocidas y Violencia Estatal: en Perspectiva Transdiscipinar (San Carlos de Bariloche, 
Argentina:  IIDyPCa-CONICET-UNRN, 2014), 
http://iidypca.homestead.com/Pr_cticas_Genocidas_y_Violencia_Estatal_en_perspectiva_transdi
sciplinar..pdf 
 
“Hell Is for Children:  The Impact of Genocide on Young Armenians,” Genocide:  A Critical 
Bibliographic Review, Vol. 10, The Plight and Fate of Children Prior to, During, and Following 
Genocide, edited by Samuel Totten (New Brunswick, NJ:  Transaction Publishers, 2014) 
 
 “Reparations for Genocide:  Group Harm and the Limits of Liberal Individualism,” 
International Criminal Law Review, special issue:  “Armenian Genocide Reparations,” 14:2 
(February 2014) 
 
“Yüzyl Türkiye’si İçin Ermeni Soykırımı Sorunu:  Sorumluluk ve Çözüme Yönelik Tazmin” 
(“The Challenge of the Armenian Genocide for 21st Century Turkey:  Responsibility and 
Reparation Toward Resolution”), in Sait Çetinoğlu and Mahmut Konuk, Öncesi ve Sonrası Ile 
1915:  Inkâr ve Yüzleşme:  Inkâr ve Yüzleşme Sempozyumu 24-25 Nisan 2010 (Ankara, Turkey:  
Ütopya Yayınevi, 2013) 
 
“Shared Burdens  and Perpetrator-Victim Group Conciliation,” in Bert Ingelaere, Stephen 
Parmentier, Jacques Haere, and Barbara Segaert, Genocide, Risk and Resilience:  An 
Interdisciplinary Approach, “Rethinking Political Violence” book series (Basingstoke, 
Hampshire, UK:  Palgrave Macmillan, 2013) 
 
“Denial of Ongoing Atrocities as a Rationale for Not Attempting to Prevent or Intervene,” in 
Genocide:  A Critical Bibliographic Review, Vol. 9, Impediments to the Prevention and 
Intervention of Genocide, edited by Samuel Totten (New Brunswick, NJ:  Transaction 
Publishers, 2013) 
 
“From Unfair to Shared Burden:  The Armenian Genocide’s Outstanding Damage and the 
Complexities of Repair,” Armenian Review, special issue:  “The Global Reparations Movement,” 
53:1-4 (Spring-Winter 2012) 

http://iidypca.homestead.com/Pr_cticas_Genocidas_y_Violencia_Estatal_en_perspectiva_transdisciplinar..pdf
http://iidypca.homestead.com/Pr_cticas_Genocidas_y_Violencia_Estatal_en_perspectiva_transdisciplinar..pdf


Henry C. Theriault - Page 9 
 

 
“From Dialogue to Repair:  Resolving the ‘Armenian Question,’” Armenian Review, special 
issue:  “The Global Reparations Movement,” 53:1-4 (Spring-Winter 2012) 
 
“Genocide Prevention:  Studies and Recommendations” (2012), “International Indifference to 
East Timor:  U.S., British, and Australian Support of Indonesia” (2012), “Kurdistan and 
Genocide: Role of Turkish Policy Regarding Kurdish Statehood” (2012), “Recognition of the 
Armenian Genocide:  Diplomacy and Denial: Reluctance to Recognize the Armenian Genocide” 
(2012), “UN Definition of Genocide: Definition of Genocide Still Viable?” (2012), and “Why 
Did It Take the United States 30 Years to Sign the 1948 UN Convention on Genocide” (2013), 
all in Modern Genocide:  Understanding Causes and Consequences (Santa Barbara, CA:  ABC-
CLIO, 2012-13, http://moderngenocide.abc-clio.com/ ) 
 
 “Against the Grain:  Critical Reflections on the State and Future of Genocide Scholarship,” 
Genocide Studies and Prevention 7:1 (Spring 2012) 

• Published in the second special issue on the “State and Future of Genocide Studies” 
  
“The Mass Atrocity Response Operation Handbook:  New Possibilities or the Same Old 
Militarism,” Genocide Studies and Prevention 6:1 (Spring 2011) 
 
“Genocidal Mutation and the Challenge of Definition,” Metaphilosophy 41:4 (July 2010)  
  
“Rousseau, Plato, and Western Philosophy’s Anti-Genocidal Strain,” in Metacide:  In the Pursuit 
of Excellence, Value Inquiry Book Series, Vol. 216, edited by James R. Watson (Amsterdam, the 
Netherlands:  Rodopi, 2010) 
 
“Genocide, Denial, and Domination:  Armenian-Turkish Relations From Conflict Resolution to 
Just Transformation,” Journal of African Conflicts and Peace Studies 1:2 (September 2009) 
 
“The Albright-Cohen Report:  From Realpolitik Fantasy to Realist Ethics,” Genocide Studies 
and Prevention 4:2 (Summer 2009) 
 
“Rethinking Dehumanization in Genocide,” in The Armenian Genocide:  Cultural and Ethical 
Legacies, edited by Richard Hovannisian (New Brunswick, NJ:  Transaction Publishers, 2007) 
 
“An Analytical Typology of Arguments Denying Genocides and Related Mass Human Rights 
Violations” (Comparative Genocide Studies [University of Tokyo] Volume 1, 2004) 
 
“Free Speech and Denial:  The Case of the Armenian Genocide,” in Looking Backward, Moving 
Forward:  Confronting the Armenian Genocide, edited by Richard G. Hovannisian (New 
Brunswick, NJ:  Transaction Publishers, 2003) 

• Summarized and discussed in Facing History and Ourselves’ resource book, Crimes 
Against Humanity and Civilization:  The Genocide of the Armenians (Facing History and 
Ourselves Foundation, 2004), pp. 177-79 

 

http://moderngenocide.abc-clio.com/


Henry C. Theriault - Page 10 
 

“Universal Social Theory and the Denial of Genocide:  Norman Itzkowitz Revisited,” Journal of 
Genocide Research 3:2 (June 2001) 

• Reprinted in Defining the Horrific:  Readings on Genocide and Holocaust in the 
Twentieth Century, edited by William L. Hewitt (Pearson-Prentice Hall, 2004) 

 
RECENT AND SELECTED INVITED LECTURES, KEYNOTE ADDRESSES, AND 
PANEL PRESENTATIONS 
 
Invited Presentation 
“The Destruction of Artsakh and the 130-Year Genocide” 
“Continuation of Genocide:  The Armenian Struggle” Panel 
Armenian National Committee – Eastern Region 
Brown University 
May 2, 2024 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Unpacking the Armenian Government’s Minimization of Genocide:  Risks and Responses” 
Panel 
National Association for Armenian Studies and Research and Institute for Security Analysis 
Virtual 
May 1, 2024 
 
Invited Presentation 
Armenian Genocide Commemoration 
St. Sarkis Armenian Apostolic Church 
Douglaston, NY 
April 28, 2024 
 
“Nationalism, Anti-Nationalism, and the Survival of Genocide Victim Groups” 
“Exclusionary Nationalism and Identity Formation” Panel (April 17) 
Genocide Awareness Week 
Arizona State University 
April 16-18, 2024 
 
Invited Participant 
“The Making of Aurora’s Sunrise” Panel (April 8) 
Genocide Awareness Symposium 
Texas State University 
April 1-12, 2024 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Imaginary and Fabricated Genocides” 
Genocide Awareness Symposium (April 8) 
Texas State University 
April 1-12, 2024 
 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 11 
 

Invited Discussant 
“Armenian Genocide Research:  Documentation, Denial, and Recognition” Panel 
Remembering Richard G. Hovannisian:  Looking Back, Moving Forward 
Promise Armenian Institute 
University of California at Los Angeles 
April 6, 2024 
 
Invited Presentation 
“When Genocide Is Global:  The Armenian Case” Panel 
Lemkin Institute for Genocide Prevention 
Virtual 
March 22, 2024 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Self-Determination as Genocide Prevention” (March 21) 
“Discrimination, Genocide and Ethnic Cleansing in Nagorno-Karabakh” Working Symposium 
Center for Holocaust and Genocide Studies 
University of Minnesota 
March 21-22, 2024 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Breaking Borders:  The Ethnic Cleansing of Artsakh/Nagorno-Karabakh” Panel 
Armenian Cultural Association of Maine 
University of Southern Maine 
December 6, 2023 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Words and Discourse” Session 
“Artsakh:  Loss, Trauma, and Restoration” Symposium 
The Armenian Center at Columbian University, Columbia School of Social Work, Columbia 
Middle Eastern, South Asian, and African Studies Department, Columbia Institute for the Study 
of Human Rights, and the National Association for Armenian Studies and Research 
Columbia University 
November 11, 2023 
 
Featured Speaker 
“The Artsakh Crisis:  Scholarly Ethics, Activism, and Genocide” 
Annual Assembly of Members 
National Association for Armenian Studies and Research 
Belmont, MA 
November 4, 2023 
 
Invited Presentation 
“The Blockade of the Lachin Corridor and the Conquest of Nagorno-Karabakh" Panel 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 12 
 

National Association for Armenian Studies and Research/Calouste Gulbenkian Foundation 
Series on Contemporary Armenian Issues, the International Institute for Genocide and Human 
Rights Studies (A Division of the Zoryan Institute), and Genocide Studies International 
Virtual 
October 24, 2023 
 
Invited Lecture 
“The Failure to Repair and the Persistence of Genocide” 
Monroe Center for Social Inquiry 
Pitzer College 
September 19, 2023 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Treaty of Lausanne Centennial Panel Discussion” 
Summer Roundtable Series 
Green School of International and Public Affairs 
Florida International University 
Virtual 
July 24, 2023 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Impossible Harms:  The Challenge of Repairing Key Impacts of Genocide on Children” (May 
13, delivered virtually) 
“Child and Nation:  Forcible Child Transfer and the Genocide Convention Through Historical 
and Contemporary Lenses” International Conference 
Armenian Genocide Museum Institute 
Yerevan, Armenia 
May 13-15, 2023 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Prevention of Atrocity Crimes in the Digital Era” Panel 
Permanent Mission of Armenia to the United Nations 
United Nations Headquarters 
New York, NY 
April 28, 2023 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Genocide, Human Rights Law, and Justice:  Lessons from the Armenian Case” Panel 
New Jersey Institute for Continuing Legal Education 
Virtual 
April 25, 2023 
 
Invited Presentation 
“The Blockade of Artsakh and Global Indifference” Panel 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 13 
 

National Association for Armenian Studies and Research/Calouste Gulbenkian Foundation 
Series on Contemporary Armenian Issues, the Mashtots Chair in Armenian Studies at Harvard 
University, and the Society for Armenian Studies 
Virtual 
January 21, 2023 
 
Invited Presentation 
“Remembrance and Education as Powerful Tools for Prevention:  Drawing Lessons to Address 
Challenges” Panel 
Permanent Mission of Armenia 
United Nations Headquarters 
New York, NY 
December 9, 2019 
 
“Legacies of Lemkin:  The Consequences of Genocide and Opportunities for Prevention” 
Inaugural Lecture (Invitation from Member of Congress Adm Schiff) 
Raphael Lemkin Policy Series:  Raising Genocide Awareness in the 21st Century 
Rayburn House Office Building Room 2123 
Capitol Hill 
US Congress 
February 27, 2019 
 
Third Global Forum Against the Crime of Genocide 
Invited presentation (December 10) 
Foreign Ministry of the Republic of Armenia, with support from the United Nations Special 
Adviser of the Secretary General on the Prevention of Genocide and in coordination with the 
International Association of Genocide Scholars 
Yerevan, Armenia 
December 9-11, 2018 
 
“The Universality of Translating Reparations for Mass Violence” 
Invited presentation 
“An Evening with Alejandra Patricia Karamanian and Henry C. Theriault” 
Worcester State University 
October 30, 2017 
 
“Setting the Agenda:  Genocide Studies Today and the Place of the Armenian Genocide” 
Invited discussion 
National Association for Armenian Studies and Research 
Belmont, MA 
September 21, 2017 
 
“A Film and Its Limits” 
Invited presentation (July 12) 
“Denial:  David Irving and the Complexities of Representing a Holocaust Denier” Panel 
13th Biennial Conference 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 14 
 

International Association of Genocide Scholars 
University of Queensland 
July 9-13, 2017 
 
“Genocide and International Law” panel presentation 
Third Convention of European Armenians 
European Parliament 
Brussels, Belgium 
October 15, 2013 
 
Keynote Speaker 
United States Congressional Caucus on Armenian Issues’ Armenian Genocide Observance 
Cannon Caucus Room 
Capitol Hill 
April 22, 2009 

• Other participants included then-Speaker of the House Nancy Pelosi, Representative 
Frank Pallone (NJ), then-Representative Mark Kirk (IL), and Representative James P. 
McGovern (MA) 

 
 
RECENT CONFERENCE PAPERS AND PANELS 
 
“Genocidal Repetition and the Vulnerability of Targeted Groups” 
Paper 
International Network of Genocide Scholars 9th International Conference (June 25) 
Dornsife Center for Advanced Genocide Research 
University of Southern California 
June 22-26, 2024 
 
“Genocidal Intensity, Repetition, and Interdiction:  A New Understanding of Time and Repair” 
“The Impact of Genocide on Society and Time” Panel (July 14) 
International Association of Genocide Scholars 16th Biennial Conference 
Faculty of Law 
University of Barcelona 
July 10-14, 2023 
 
“Is Democracy a Risk Factor for Genocide?” 
“Preventing Genocide” Panel (July 13) 
International Association of Genocide Scholars 16th Biennial Conference 
Faculty of Law 
University of Barcelona 
July 10-14, 2023 
 
 
SELECTED MEDIA INTERVIEWS AND APPEARANCES 
 



Henry C. Theriault - Page 15 
 

Video Interview 
“Growing Fears of Genocide in Nagorno-Karabakh” 
Your Morning 
CTV Television Network (Canada) 
September 28, 2023 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yeNwKNh63N4 
 
Interviewed in “Völkermord könnte für Türkei teuer warden” 
Jürg Steiner 
Berner Zeitung 
Bern, Switzerland 
April 24, 2015 
http://www.bernerzeitung.ch/ausland/naher-osten-und-afrika/Voelkermord-koennte-fuer-
Tuerkei-teuer-werden/story/21222044 
 
Quoted in “Armenian Groups Are Increasingly Focused on Reparations for Genocide” 
Rick Gladstone 
The New York Times Online 
April 23, 2015 
http://www.nytimes.com/2015/04/24/world/europe/turkey-fear-of-reparations-possibly-in-many-
billions-is-a-factor-in-armenian-genocide-denials.html?_r=0 
(Alternate version published as “Activist Groups Are Increasingly Focused on Reparations for 
Genocide,” in The New York Times New York Edition, April 24, 2015, Page A8) 
 
“Dan Yorke State of Mind” Program 
Full show on the Armenian Genocide 
myRITV (WPRI) 
Providence, RI 
April 17, 2015 
 
Interview on current issues regarding the Armenian Genocide 
“Armenian Program” 
SBS Radio 
Melbourne, Victoria 
Australia 
April 27, 2012 
 
Interview on reparations for genocide 
WBAI  99.5 FM (Pacifica Radio) 
New York, NY 
April 24, 2012 
Interviewed in “Armenians to Commemorate Genocide” 
Rhonda Stewart 
Boston Globe 
April 11, 2004 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yeNwKNh63N4
http://www.bernerzeitung.ch/ausland/naher-osten-und-afrika/Voelkermord-koennte-fuer-Tuerkei-teuer-werden/story/21222044
http://www.bernerzeitung.ch/ausland/naher-osten-und-afrika/Voelkermord-koennte-fuer-Tuerkei-teuer-werden/story/21222044
http://www.nytimes.com/2015/04/24/world/europe/turkey-fear-of-reparations-possibly-in-many-billions-is-a-factor-in-armenian-genocide-denials.html?_r=0
http://www.nytimes.com/2015/04/24/world/europe/turkey-fear-of-reparations-possibly-in-many-billions-is-a-factor-in-armenian-genocide-denials.html?_r=0


Henry C. Theriault - Page 16 
 

“The Public Eye” 
Panel discussion on hate crimes in reference to anti-Semitic vandalism in Worcester 
WICN 90.5 FM (National Public Radio) 
Worcester, MA 
June 21, 2002 
 
“Democracy in Crisis” 
Guest expert on genocide issues 
Queens Public Television 
Queens, NY 
February 11, 2000 
 
“Here and Now” 
Interview segment on the Armenian Genocide, its denial, and their relevance to Kosovo 
WBUR 90.9 FM (National Public Radio) 
Boston, MA 
April 23, 1999 



Lois Wims
Provost/Vice President 
for Academic Affairs

Noah Dion
Director for 

Academic Affairs 
Support

Linda Larrivee
Dean for the School 

of Science, 
Technology and 

Health

Russ Pottle
Dean for the School 
of Humanities and 
Social Sciences

Anthony Adade
Chief 

Information 
Officer

Worcester State University
Division of Academic Affairs

Biology

Communication 
Sciences and 
Disorders

Chemistry

Business 
Administration/

Economics

Communication

Administrative 
Services

Center for Online 
Learning

Roberta Kyle
Associate Vice 

President for Cont. 
Education & Dean of 
Graduate Studies

Sarah Strout
Assistant Vice 
President for 

Assessment and 
Planning

Institutional 
Research

Mary Jo Marion
Assoc. Vice President 
for University and 

Community 
Engagement

Henry Theriault
Assoc. Vice President 
for Academic Affairs

Center for 
Effective 
Instruction

Computer Science

Health Sciences

Mathematics

Earth, 
Environment, and 

Physics

Criminal Justice

English

History/Political 
Science

Philosophy

Psychology

Sociology

World Languages

Visual/Performing 
Arts

Urban Studies

Worcester Center 
for Crafts

Graduate 
Programs

Latino Education 
Institute

End User Services

Infrastructure 
Services

Media Services

Academic Success 
Center

Liberal Arts and 
Sciences 

Curriculum
 (General Education 

Program) 

CTL: Faculty 
Development 

Center

Dennis Brutus/
Merrill Goldwyn 
Human Rights 

Center

Institutional 
Animal Care and 
Use Committee

Multicultural 
Affairs

Commonwealth 
Honors Program

First‐Year 
Seminar Program

Nursing

Occupational 
Therapy

Chyna Kavan
Staff Assistant

Katey Palumbo
Director of 
International 
Programs

Matthew 
Bejune

Executive Director of 
Library Services

Raynold Lewis
Dean of Education, 

Liberal and 
Interdisciplinary 

Studies

Education

Liberal and 
Interdisciplinary 

Studies

Library Services

Binienda Center 
for Civic 

Engagement

Institutional 
Review Board

Research Integrity 
Officer



Lois Wims
Provost/Vice President for 

Academic Affairs

Henry Theriault
Associate Vice President for Academic 

Affairs

Worcester State University
Division of Academic Affairs
Academic Success Center

Non‐Unit Professional

APA

Classified

MSCA

Tammy Tebo
Assistant Dean

Sacha Langford
Staff Assistant

Academic Advisor

Jenna Glazer
Associate Director, New Student 

Advising Programs

Julie Connor
Assistant Director

Tiffany Hexter
Staff Assistant

Academic Advisor

Dara Duong
Staff Assistant

Academic Advisor

Kyaralyn Valerio
Clerk IV

Vacant
Staff Assistant

Academic Advisor



Lois Wims
Provost/Vice President 
for Academic Affairs

Noah Dion
Director for 

Academic Affairs 
Support

Worcester State University
Division of Academic Affairs

Henry Theriault
Assoc. Provost for 
Academic Affairs

Academic Success 
Center

Liberal Arts and 
Sciences 

Curriculum
 (General Education 

Program) 
CTL: Faculty 
Development 

Center
Dennis Brutus/
Merrill Goldwyn 
Human Rights 

Center

Institutional 
Animal Care and 
Use Committee

Commonwealth 
Honors Program

First‐Year 
Seminar Program

Chyna Kavan
Staff Assistant

Katey Palumbo
Director of 
International 
Programs

Matthew 
Bejune

Executive Director of 
Library Services

Library Services

Institutional 
Review Board

Research Integrity 
Officer



 WORCESTER STATE UNIVERSITY 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 Nomina�ng Commi�ee Mee�ng 
 Tuesday, May 14, 2024 

 10:00 AM 
 REMOTE PARTICIPATION 

 Join Zoom Meeting 
 https://worcester.zoom.us/j/97420973629 

 Meeting ID: 974 2097 3629 

 Mee�ng Called By  :     Marina Taylor (Chair)  Minutes  : Nikki Kapurch 

 Board Members  :  Marina Taylor; Lisa Colombo; Lawrence Sasso 

 WSU Staff  :                    Nikki Kapurch 

 All documents considered to be  dra�s  un�l discussed  and/or approved by the Board 

 AGENDA 

 ITEM  RESPONSIBLE  ACTION 
 1.  Administra�ve Business 

 a.  Call to Order  Marina Taylor 

 2.  Nomina�ng Commi�ee Report 

 a.  Present Slate Of Officers - 2023-2024* 
 b.  Present Trustees- Expira�on Of Terms* 
 c.  Current Bylaws* 

 Marina Taylor  Recommenda�on to the Full 
 Board  - 1 vote required 

 a.  Informa�onal 
 b.  Informa�onal 
 c.  Informa�onal 

 3.  Adjournment  Marina Taylor  3.  vote required 

 *A�achments 

https://worcester.zoom.us/j/97420973629


Board of Trustees - Slate of Officers                                                           

 

POSITION: CURRENT 2023/2024 

(Elected 6-13-2023) 

NEW SLATE  2024/2025 

CHAIR Trustee Marina Taylor   

(2) VICE-CHAIRS Trustee Lisa Colombo  
Trustee Lawrence Sasso  

 

SECRETARY President Barry Maloney  

ASSISTANT SECRETARY Nikki Kapurch   

(2) FOUNDATION BOARD Trustee Dina Nichols  
Trustee Maureen Power 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: 
ALTERNATE 

Trustee Karen LaFond  
Trustee Dina Nichols 

 

MA STATE COLLEGES PRESIDENTS/TRUSTEES 
ASSOCIATION (CHAIR) 
ALTERNATE (VICE-CHAIRS AS ALTERNATE) 

Trustee Marina Taylor  
 
Trustee Lisa Colombo  
Trustee Lawrence Sasso  

 

 



WSU BOARD OF TRUSTEES
List of WSU Board of Trustees members and the dates appointed (when membership started) and their terms of

office.

BOT Members Appointment Date Expiration of Term Eligible for
Reappointment

Colombo, Lisa
(appointed alum)

First Term
August 31, 2017

Second Term

First Term
March 1, 2022

Second Term
March 1, 2027

Not Eligible

LaFond, Karen First Term
November 15, 2015

First Term
March 1, 2020

Second Term
March 1, 2025

Not Eligible

Power, Maureen First Term
Official: August 1, 2022
Appointed: January 3, 2023

First Term
July 31, 2027 Eligible

Mosley, William First Term
October 9, 2019

First Term
March 1, 2024 Not Eligible (not interested

in the second term)

Nichols, Dina First Term
December 29, 2015

Second Term
July 24, 2020

First Term
March 1, 2020

Second Term
March 1, 2025

Not Eligible

Peterson, Amy

(elected alum)

First Term (Alumni Elected)
July 1, 2022

First Term
June 30, 2027 Eligible

Schott, Kaitlin First Term (Student Elected)
July 1, 2023

First Term
June 30, 2024

Anticipated year of
graduation

Taylor, Marina First Term
November 15, 2015

First Term
March 1, 2020

Second Term
March 1, 2025

Not Eligible

Tuttle, David First Term
June 30, 2016

Second Term
March 26, 2021

First Term
March 1, 2021

Second Term
March 1, 2026

Not Eligible

Sasso, Lawrence First Term
January 22, 2021

First Term
March 1, 2025

Eligible



WORCESTER STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

BY-LAWS
Updated 1/19/2021

PREAMBLE: Worcester State University is a public university in the system of public institutions of
higher education in Massachusetts. The University is governed by an eleven-member Board of Trustees.
These By-Laws shall govern the proceedings and acts of the Board of Trustees of Worcester State
University.

ARTICLE I. ORGANIZATION AND OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

SECTION 1. COMPOSITION AND FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD. The composition,
functions, duties, powers, and responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, its committees, or
subcommittees, shall be as provided and authorized by the laws General Laws of the
Commonwealth as in effect, and by such rules, regulations, policies, or guidelines as the Board
of Higher Education may, from time to time, adopt amend or repeal for the management, control,
administration, or regulation of the system of public institutions of higher education, or any part
thereof.

SECTION 2. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD. The officers shall consist of a Chair, two
Vice-Chairs, a Secretary, and an Assistant Secretary, all of whom shall be elected at the annual
meeting of the Board.

The Chair and Vice-Chairs of the Board shall be Trustees.

The Officers shall serve until their successors have been elected and sworn to the duties of their
respective offices.

SECTION 3. THE CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES. The Chair of the Board of
Trustees shall have the following powers and duties:

(a) To preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees at which he/she is present.
(b) To call special meetings of the Board of Trustees.
(c) To serve ex officio, with voting power, as a member of all standing committees of the

Board of Trustees.
(d) To appoint standing committees, a nominating committee, and other special committees

or task forces of the Board of Trustees and Chair thereof.
(e) To appoint successor members and chairs of standing committees, other than the

Executive Committee, in the event that for any reason a vacancy occurs in any such
office. A successor so appointed shall serve until the next annual meeting of the Board of
Trustees.



(f) To appoint substitute members and chairs of standing committees, other than the
Executive Committee, in the event that any such member or chair thereof declares an
inability to serve for any period. A substitute so appointed shall serve during such
inability.

(g) To designate a minimum of two Trustees as members of standing committees, other than
the Executive Committee. In the event of an increase in the number of Trustees appointed
to the Board, the number of members of such committees shall be enlarged by such
appointment. A member so appointed shall serve until the next annual meeting of the
Board of Trustees.

SECTION 4. THE VICE CHAIRS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES. The Vice-Chairs of the
Board of Trustees shall have the following powers and duties:

(a) To perform the duties of the Chair of the Board of Trustees at the Chair’s request or in the
case of absence or incapacity of the Chair. In the absence of the Chair and the Vice-Chair,
the Board of Trustees shall elect a Chair Pro Tempore.

SECTION 5. THE SECRETARY. The secretary shall have the following duties:

(a) To give written notice of all regular and special meetings of the Board of Trustees and of
standing and special committees thereof. And to compile and distribute agendas therefor.

(b) To record the proceedings and to prepare minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Trustees, and of standing and special committees thereof.

(c) To preserve all documents, papers, and records of the Board of Trustees determined by
the Board to be a part of its official records or necessary to the performance of its duties.

(d) To conduct correspondence as directed by the Board of Trustees and to certify official
documents and proceedings.

(e) To perform duties, not inconsistent with those prescribed by these Bylaws or by the
Board of Trustees as prescribed from time to time by the Chair of the Board of Trustees.

(f) To serve as Parliamentarian of the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 6. THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY. The Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties
of the Secretary in the event of his absence or illness and assist in the preparation and conduct of
general Trustee business under the direction of the Secretary.

ARTICLE II. ROLE OF THE BOARD. The Board shall be responsible to execute all of its duties and
functions as mandated by Chapter 15A of the General Laws of the Commonwealth, any other provision
of applicable law, and by its own bylaws. The key responsibilities of the Board shall include:

(a) To appoint, support, and assess the performance of the President;
(b) To provide guidance, direction, feedback, approve and assess the overall mission and strategic

direction of the University in the long-range;



(c) To provide guidance, direction, feedback to major initiatives of the University and to approve
new academic programs;

(d) To ensure adequate financial resources and financial management of the University;
(e) To preserve the institutional autonomy, represent the University to the community and the

community to the University;
(f) To periodically review and provide guidance to the president on major issues facing the

University.
(g) To develop and submit to the Secretary and the Council a mission statement for the University.

(Secretary would be Commissioner and Council refers to the former Higher Education
Coordinating Council which is now the Department of Higher Education.)
The Board places responsibility on the President, as its Chief Executive Officer, to act with
administrative authority on all matters pertaining to the conduct of the University business.

For the purpose of executing its fiduciary and statutory responsibilities, as mandated through its
bylaws, BHE policies, and procedure guidelines, the full Board may delegate to the appropriate
committee(s) the responsibility and authority to deliberate an action agenda as presented to it by
the President. The appropriate Vice President shall serve as a resource person to Committee
Chairs in providing detailed data and information on agenda items under consideration. Positive
or negative recommendations of committees shall be forwarded to the full Board.

ARTICLE III. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

SECTION 1. ANNUAL MEETING: Annual Meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held at
the last scheduled Board Meeting during which the Board will elect officers, adopt its
organizational issues, establish standing committees and meeting schedules.
REGULAR MEETINGS: The Board shall conduct its regular meetings through bi-monthly
sessions and meet at least five times a year or more as necessary.

SECTION 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS: Special Meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held at
any time and place within the Commonwealth when called by the Chair of the Board of Trustees
or the President of the University or by three Trustees in writing given to the Secretary
specifying the purpose(s) of said meeting. The time and place of such meeting shall be fixed by
the Chair of the Board of Trustees, except for those called by three or more Trustees, who shall
have the right to fix the time and place of said meeting. Written notice of such meetings shall be
sent to each Trustee by mail at least three days prior to the date fixed for said meeting, which
notices shall state the time, place, and the purpose(s) for which it has been called; provided, that
no notice need be given to any Trustee who waives the same by a written waiver executed before
or after the meeting. Each such waiver shall be filed with the records of the meeting.

SECTION 3. NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING; WAIVER. Written notice of each regular
meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be sent to each trustee by mail at least seven days prior to
the date fixed for said meeting, which notices shall state the time and place thereof; provided,
that no notice need be given to any trustee who waives the same by a written waiver executed
before or after the meeting. Each such waiver shall be filed with the records of the meeting.



SECTION 4. AGENDA OF REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS. A written agenda of matters to
be considered at each regular meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be sent to each Trustee by
mail at least five days prior to the date diced for said meetings. Items to be included in the
agenda for a regular meeting shall be submitted to the Secretary in writing by (a)
recommendation of a standing or other committees of the Board of Trustees, (b) the Chair of the
Board of Trustees, or (c) the President of the University, and any Trustee upon the majority vote
of said Board shall be entitled to present matters to the Board of Trustees for its consideration
without prior reference to a committee.

The focus of the Board should be on a format structured around issues and operating results
rather than a series of individual reports. The structured areas to be considered on a regular basis
include:

● Review and discussion of major policies or issues and formal adoption of such programs.
● Review and status of previously implemented policies and initiatives.
● An operational report concerning the current status of the programs and the finance of the

University.
● Review of administrative matters requiring Board approval.
● Review and discuss the furtherance of diversity, equity, and inclusion.

At least one meeting a year would be devoted to a strategic review which can be used as the
benchmark for discussions for the remainder of the year.

SECTION 5. QUORUM. The number of Trustees necessary to constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business shall be a majority of members (Trustees) then in office, but a lesser
number may adjourn any meeting from time to time, and such meetings may be held as
adjourned without further notice. When a quorum is present at any meeting, a majority of the
Trustees present may take action on behalf of the Trustees unless a larger number is required by
other provisions of these Bylaws. By a vote of a majority of a quorum of Trustees present, any
meeting may be recessed.

ARTICLE IV. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

SECTION I. STANDING COMMITTEES. There shall be five standing committees of the Board
as follows: (a) Executive Committee; (B) Committee on Finance and Facilities; (c) Committee
on Academic and Student Development; (d) Committee on Human Resources; (e) Committee on
Planning and Development.

SECTION 2. NOMINATING AND SPECIAL COMMITTEES OR TASK FORCES.
Nominating and Special Committees or task forces for any purpose may be appointed by the
Chair.



SECTION 3: MEMBERS OF STANDING COMMITTEES. The Chair of the Board of Trustees
at the annual meeting shall fic the number and appoint the Chair and the members of each
standing committee other than the Executive Committee provided that each standing shall have
no fewer than two members. The Chair of the Board of Trustees, with voting power, and the
President of the University, without voting power, shall be members ex officio of each standing
committee.

SECTION 4. COMMITTEE MEETINGS. Committee meetings may be held at any time and
place when called but the Chair of the committee, the Chair of the Board of Trustees, the
President of the University, or a majority of members of the committee. The Secretary shall send
a written notice of the time and place of the meeting by mail to each member and any special
member of such committee at least five days prior to such meeting. Notice need not be given to
any member or special member who waives such notice in writing before or after the meeting, or
who attends the meeting. Should any matter be an appropriate subject for consideration by more
than one committee, the Chair after consultation with the respective chairs of said committees
shall determine to which committee or committees the matter shall be referred, and whether a
joint committee meeting shall be held.

As a principle, the quorum for a meeting shall be determined by the presence of a majority of
members on a standing committee. The chair of the committee may, from time to time, invite
students, faculty, administrators, alumni, and others to participate in committee meetings in
seeking their advice.

Any member of the Board other than those as bonafide members of the committee may attend
and participate in committee discussions but without voting power.

SECTION 5. AGENDA OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD. A written agenda of matters to
be considered at each meeting of a committee of the Board of Trustees shall be sent to each
committee member as early as possible in advance of the meeting. Copies of committee agendas
will be sent to all trustees for their information as will minutes of committee meetings. Items to
be included on committee agendas shall be submitted to the Secretary in writing by:

(a) The President of the University, or
(b) Any Trustee.

SECTION 6. THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. The Executive Committee shall be composed
of the Chair and Vice-Chairs of the Board of Trustees, the President of the University, and one
additional Board member elected to this committee by the Trustees at the annual meeting. The
Trustees will also elect an alternate to serve in the event that the elected Board member is unable
to serve or be present at a meeting of the committee. This Committee shall have the following
powers and duties:



(a) The Executive Committee of the Board will meet, upon due notification by the Chair and
the President, to transact business between regular board meetings and to act with the full
power and authority of the Board.

(b) To consider and act upon proposals by the President for action which the Board may have
generally or specifically authorized the President to take with the concurrence of the
Executive Committee.

(c) To recommend honorary degree candidates for approval by the Board of Trustees.
(d) To assign to an officer of the University any matter for which a hearing by the Board of

Trustees or any committee thereof is deemed necessary by the Executive Committee, or
is required under the laws of the Commonwealth or the rules and regulations for said
Board.

(e) To consider, propose, and recommend to the Board of Trustees the adoption, amendment,
or revisions of rules and regulations for the governance of the Board of Trustees and the
University, its administration, faculty, staff, students, and activities.

(f) To report to the Board of Trustees all actions taken or concurred in by said Committee at
the next regular meeting of the Board of Trustees or as soon thereafter as possible.

(g) To consider the furtherance of governance, legislative, and public relations policy
interests of the Board of Trustees and of the University and to make recommendations to
the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(h) To consider recommendations regarding relationships between the university and its
alumni bodies and other groups having or desiring a special relationship to the University,
and to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(i) To consider recommendations of the President of the University with respect to programs
concerning the various constituencies of the university and to make recommendations to
the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(j) To consider the furtherance of diversity, equity, and inclusion and make recommendations
to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

SECTION 7. THE COMMITTEE ON ACADEMIC AND STUDENT DEVELOPMENT.
The committee on Academic and Student Involvement shall have the following powers and
duties:

(a) To consider all matters related to academic affairs.
(b) To consider policies regarding the quality, character, and extent of instruction and

research at the university, including policies governing admission requirements, programs
of instruction, curriculum, academic personnel, new degree programs and changes to
existing degree programs, public service activities and research, and to make
recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(c) To consider policies related to the educational purposes and responsibilities of the
university and evaluate the same on a long-range basis, and to make recommendations to
the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(d) To consider all matters related to Student Development.



(e) To consider policy matters pertaining to student life and activity, student government, and
other recognized student organizations and groups, and to make recommendations to the
Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(f) To consider policies relating to the health and well-being of the student body, including
advisement and counseling, and to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with
respect thereto.

(g) To advise the President on any matter within the scope of the committee’s duties.
(h) To consider the furtherance of diversity, equity, and inclusion and make recommendations

to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

SECTION 8. THE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE AND FACILITIES. The committee on
Finance and Facilities shall have the following powers and duties:

(a) To consider all matters related to administration and finance.
(b) To consider and act upon operating budget requests and capital outlay budget requests

submitted by the University and to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with
respect thereto.

(c) To review proposals for the transfer of funds between subsidiary accounts, and to make
recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(d) To consider policies and other matters pertaining to the investment of endowment funds
and other funds of the University that may from time to time be invested and reinvested,
and to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(e) To review the financial records and controls of the University; to review and develop
policies respecting the receipt, management, and disbursement of funds of the University
from whatever source received, the purchase of services, supplies and materials and
internal controls over the same; to review proposals for fees, rents, and charges; to
consider policies and other matters pertaining to the leasing of private property by the
University, to review audits of financial activities of the University and to report theron,
and to make recommendations with respect thereto to the Board of Trustees.

(f) To consider the fidelity and performance bonding of the University personnel and to
report thereon, and to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect
thereto.

(g) To consider policies and other matters pertaining to the physical properties of the
University, including all buildings, land acquisition, and transfer, landscape plans, and
developments and construction thereon, and to make recommendations to the Board of
Trustees with respect thereto.

(h) To consider plans and policies governing campus master planning and capital outlay
budgets, and to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(i) To consider and make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect to design
plans, bid taking, and other building project matters, contracts, and combinations for
architects and engineers on all buildings, structures and facilities to be built on University
property, prior to any final action theron by the Board of Trustees.



(j) To inspect University lands and buildings as required; to consider the acceptance of
completed construction, and to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with
respect thereto.

(k) To consider plans for lots, roads, streets, paths, and ways, and regulations for pedestrian
and vehicular use thereof on the property of the University, and to make
recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(l) To consider names for buildings, streets, ways, and other properties of the University and
to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(m)To consider the furtherance of diversity, equity, and inclusion and make recommendations
to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

SECTION 9. THE COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES. The committee on Human
Resources shall have the following powers and duties:

(a) To consider all matters related to personnel.
(b) To consider general policies relating to the formulation of budgets and appropriate

compensation policies for the University and to make recommendations to the Board of
Trustees with respect thereto.

(c) To consider policies on personnel staffing patterns and to make recommendations to the
Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

(d) To consider recommendations from the President on the appointment, change in status, or
termination of University personnel and to make recommendations to the Board of
Trustees with respect thereto.

(e) To consider the furtherance of diversity, equity, and inclusion and make recommendations
to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

SECTION 10. THE COMMITTEE ON PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT. The Committee
shall consist of the following members: The two trustees elected by the Board to serve on the
board of the Worcester State Foundation and one other trustee named by the Chair of the Board.
The Committee on Planning and Development shall have the following powers and duties:

(a) Consider matters relating to long-range development quality enhancement and growth of
the University.

(b) Consider strategic plans to achieve key mission initiatives including but not limited to:
(i) Academic programs
(ii) Student life development
(iii) Support services
(iv) Financial, human, physical, and capital resource development
(v) External community relations,
(vi) Alumni relations
(vii) Governmental relations



(c) Consider such joint projects which may be appropriate with the Worcester State
Foundation.

(d) To review programs to raise private funds for the University through special gifts,
endowment bequests, and other means, and to make recommendations to the Board of
Trustees with respect thereto.

(e) To consider the furtherance of diversity, equity, and inclusion and make recommendations
to the Board of Trustees with respect thereto.

ARTICLE 11 MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 1. THE SEAL OF THE UNIVERSITY. The Common Seal of Worcester State
University and of the Board of Trustees shall consist of a circle in which the latitudinal and
longitudinal lines of the Earth are inscribed over which the outline of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts is superimposed. An open book and a twig with three leaves is within the outline.
Two rings circle the representation of the earth. The words “Worcester State University 1874”
are formed around the outer ring and another ring circles outside these words. The border of the
seal is formed by a twelve pointed scallop that encloses it.

The Earth is used as a background to show the universality of education.

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is superimposed on the Earth to show its relationships and
contributions to the word of which it is a part.

The book, representing knowledge, is placed on the Commonwealth of Massachusetts where the
City of Worcester would be located, and thereby indicates the placement of the University within
the city and the state.

The leaves symbolize the living, growing nature of the university and the process of education of
which it is a part.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT, REVISION OR REPEAL OF BYLAWS. These Bylaws may be
amended, revised, or repealed by vote of a two-thirds majority of the entire number of Trustees
at any meeting of the Board of Trustees; provided, however, that the text of any amendment,
revision, or repeal as originally proposed shall be sent to the Trustees at least thirty days before
the meeting.

SECTION 13. PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE. Roberts Rules of Order shall be a guide in
conducting the meeting of the Board of Trustees unless otherwise provided by the Board.



 
 

WSU BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
2024-2025 OFFICERS 

 

Chair   Trustee Lisa Colombo  
 

Vice-Chair (2)  Trustee Lawrence Sasso  
Trustee Maureen Power 

Secretary                          
 

President Barry Maloney 

Assistant Secretary  Nikki Kapurch  

Foundation Board (2) Trustee Marina Taylor  
Trustee Maureen Power 

Executive Committee 
Alternate 

Trustee Karen LaFond  
Trustee Amy Peterson 

MA State Colleges Presidents/Trustees 
Association (Chair) 
Alternate (Vice-Chairs as alternate) 

Trustee Lisa Colombo  
 
Trustee Maureen Power 
 Trustee Lawrence Sasso  

 



 
WORCESTER STATE UNIVERSITY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Schedule 

FY 2024-2025 
 
 
 

FULL BOARD MEETING 
 
 

Tuesday, October 22, 2024 
Tuesday, November 26, 2024 
Tuesday, January 14, 2025  
Tuesday, March 04, 2025 
Tuesday, April 08, 2025 
Tuesday, June 10, 2025 

 
 

 
Subcommittee meetings will be scheduled as needed.  



President’s Update 
 

  

 - 1 - 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents 

 
Academic Excellence and 

Student Success ................. 2 

Diversity, Equity, and 

Inclusion ............................. 4 

Student Well-Being and 

Support Services ................ 6 

Enrollment Management 

and Financial Aid................ 8 

Operational Excellence .... 10 

Appendices....................... 13 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

This issue of the Update compiles this past 
year’s highlights, as submitted by each area 
vice president. These are all the more 
remarkable, having been achieved during such 
an unsettled time. 

At the beginning of September, we welcomed a 
new first-year class that tied for the largest 
ever, and we held uplifting State of the 
University and Unity Day events in late 

PRESIDENT’S OFFICE 

Worcester State University 

486 Chandler Street 

Worcester, MA 01602 

508-929-8000 

www.worcester.edu 

 

 

PRESIDENT’S OFFICE 

Worcester State University 

486 Chandler Street 

Worcester, MA 01602 

508-929-8000 

www.worcester.edu 

 

 

 

 

 

September. Yet sadly, like so many other institutions in society today, in 
late October, the University was forced to deal with gun violence on 
campus, from those unrelated to the campus community. I was proud 
of the staff – in the University Police and Residence Life departments, 
especially – who performed their duties throughout that trying 
weekend.  That we were able to return to classes that Tuesday left me 
thankful for our many dedicated faculty and staff.  

 
A crisis of a different sort confronted us, and all of higher education, 
this spring, with federal delays in the FAFSA process. Our enrollment 
management division sprang into action – with cross-campus assistance 
– to ensure this wouldn’t put us at a competitive disadvantage. They 
expanded contacts with admitted students and their families via text 
and email; extended our admissions deposit deadline out to June 1; 
created a new web page dedicated to FAFSA delay information; 
expanded temporary resources within the financial aid office; and 
invested in new auto-packaging functions so that as soon as soon as the 
federal government sent us FAFSA data, we would be able to generate 
aid award letters/emails. 
 
Meanwhile, we carried out the day-to-day functions of a mid-sized 
university in the city of Worcester. On May 17, we hosted the largest 
number of graduate students ever – along with many of their closest 
friends and family – for the hooding ceremony in Sullivan Auditorium, 
and the next day, nearly 1,000 of our undergraduates commenced. The 
majority of that graduating class took the brave step of enrolling in 
college during the height of the pandemic, prior to the rollout of the 
first vaccines, in Fall 2020. I’m reminded that this generation is more 
resilient than others say they are, and that our Lancer community rises 
to the challenges that come before us, time and time again. 

 
 

 

President’s Update 
 

ate 

 

President’s Message 

June 2024 

 

June 2016 

 



President’s Update 
 

  

 - 2 - 
 

Academic Excellence and Student Success  

Worcester State’s Department of Visual and Performing Arts (VPA) collaborated with community 
partner Music Worcester to organize two compelling musical events this past academic year. The first 
event, "Bridges Between: Creating Music Across Cultures," featured world-renowned composer Reena 
Esmail, who works between the worlds of Indian and Western classical music, and MacArthur 
Foundation Genius Grant awardee and violinist Vijay Gupta, founder and Artistic Director of Street 
Symphony and co-founder of the Skid Row Arts Alliance. The program, open to both the academic and 
local communities, aimed to foster meaningful connections across cultures through the acts of "telling 
and listening." The second event featured a reading and discussion with Mrs. Annye Anderson, step-
sister of legendary musician Robert Johnson, who shared memories and insights from her book "Brother 
Robert: Growing Up with Robert Johnson," alongside acclaimed vocalist and guitarist Tim Eriksen. Mrs. 
Anderson, now 97 years old, recalled pivotal family moments and treasured memories of her early years 
with the influential blues musician, dispelling inaccuracies and shedding light on Johnson's life and 
musical talents beyond the blues genre.  

 

Over the past two years, three Computer Science (CS) faculty members, Drs. Karl Wurst, Nada Alsallami, 
and Ali Al-Faris, participated in Duke University’s "Cultural Competence in Computing (3C) Fellows 
Program.” This two-year, cohort-based, virtual professional development program helps computing 
faculty learn about social science topics such as identity, intersectionality, racism, bias, and 
discrimination, and how these topics appear in academic environments and technologies. During their 
second year in the program (2023-2024), the CS faculty members developed and implemented projects 
promoting diversity, inclusion, and equity (DIE) in their courses. Dr. Wurst designed an activity for CS-
348 Software Process Management to help students write documentation using inclusive language, 
which involved using a tool to check for non-inclusive language and rewriting the text. Dr. Ali Al-Faris 
created a three-part activity for CS-193 First-Year Seminar: Game Design, which included discussing DEI 
in games based on published studies, having students review and present on DEI principles in games of 
their choice, and engaging in classroom discussions and suggestions for improving DEI in various games. 
These efforts showcase the CS faculty's dedication to incorporating DIE principles into the curriculum 
and creating an inclusive learning environment for students.  

 

https://www.musicworcester.org/
https://www.musicworcester.org/event/this-love-between-us/
https://www.musicworcester.org/event/this-love-between-us/
https://mechanicshall.org/music-worcester-vijay-gupta/
https://news.worcester.edu/step-sister-of-blues-legend-robert-johnson-shares-history-memories-during-campus-visit/
https://news.worcester.edu/step-sister-of-blues-legend-robert-johnson-shares-history-memories-during-campus-visit/
https://identity.cs.duke.edu/fellows.html
https://identity.cs.duke.edu/fellows.html


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 3 - 
 

Worcester State University's Department of Earth, Environment, and Physics (DEEP) hosted a highly 
successful solar eclipse viewing party on April 8th, 2024, organized by Drs. Nabin Malakar, Dr. Maxim 
Lavrentovich, and Ms. Alyssa Hammond. The event, which took place between the Ghosh Science & 
Technology Center and the Wellness Center, featured the distribution of 450 pairs of solar glasses and 
the deployment of four telescopes with solar filters. DEEP students assisted with the telescopes, glasses 
distribution, and answering questions from attendees. Concurrently, Chemistry faculty hosted a reverse 
tie dye activity, while nine students accompanied Dr. Andrew Burkhardt and Adjunct Professor Robert 
Kolesnik on a trip to West Burke, Vermont, as part of PY250 Observational Astronomy. The students, 
trained on operating telescopes throughout the semester, used the historic Blumsack collection recently 
loaned to Worcester State and restored by Professor Kolesnik and the Aldrich Astronomical Society. The 
eclipse event coincided with the growing popularity of physics and astronomy on campus, evident from 
the university's new Astronomy minor and the quadrupling of Physics minors since the program review 
in 2020. 

 

Worcester State has emerged as a leader in Early College education in the Commonwealth as awareness 
and adoption of this initiative continue to grow. With two Early College designations from the 
Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) and the Department of Higher Education 
(DHE) for Worcester and Springfield, along with approximately 20 other Massachusetts cities and towns 
at various stages of Early College and/or Dual Enrollment implementation, Worcester State takes pride 
in providing college-level courses and support to high school students in the region. 

 

In the Fall 2023 semester, 115 student athletes (SAs) were named to the MASCAC All-Academic Team, 
and 89 SAs earned the same honor in the Winter 2023-2024 season. All 11 women's teams and one 
men's team achieved GPAs above 3.0, with the total GPA for all SAs reaching 3.16 (women 3.41, men 
2.89). Notably, 29 SAs (20 women, 9 men) attained a perfect 4.0 GPA in the Fall 2023 semester. The 
2017 cohort of student athletes demonstrated a higher graduation rate (63%) compared to the general 
student population (56%), emphasizing the positive impact of athletic participation on student success 
and persistence. These achievements highlight our student athletes' dedication to academic excellence 
and their ability to balance their athletic commitments with their studies. 

 

https://news.worcester.edu/worcester-state-community-takes-part-in-historic-2024-solar-eclipse/
https://www.clorox.com/learn/how-to-bleach-tie-dye-patterns/
https://www.clorox.com/learn/how-to-bleach-tie-dye-patterns/
https://www.mass.edu/strategic/earlycollege.asp


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 4 - 
 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion  

Several faculty and staff members have recently completed professional development programs focused 
on diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI). Bledi Demirazi, Mary Fowler, Vicki Gruzynski, and Sam O'Connell 
participated in the Diversity and Inclusion Certificate Program (DICP) in partnership with Clark 
University. This program provides valuable training for staff, faculty, and graduate students, emphasizing 
the importance of active participation from everyone on campus in building an inclusive environment. 

 

Drs. Nabin Malakar and Kaushik Mukherjee completed the Northstar Collective (NSC) Faculty Fellowship 
Program, which is a group of colleges and universities in the New England region working towards 
transformative racial equity and committed to supporting and uplifting Black, Brown, Indigenous, and 
other people of color (BIPOC) on their campuses. The participation of these faculty members in the NSC 
Faculty Fellowship Program demonstrates Worcester State University's dedication to creating a more 
inclusive and equitable academic environment for all members of the community. These efforts align 
with the University's strategic plan goal of "Academic excellence and distinction," as fostering a diverse 
and inclusive campus contributes to the overall quality of education and student success. By engaging in 
such professional development opportunities, WSU faculty and staff are actively working to promote DEI 
and create a more welcoming and supportive environment for all students, faculty, and staff. 

 

Worcester State has been recognized as an Emerging Hispanic Serving Institution (EHSI) by both the 
Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities and Excelencia in Education. This recognition 
acknowledges the University's growing Latine/Hispanic student population, which now exceeds 15% of 
the total student body. The EHSI designation marks the University’s significant progress towards 
achieving the Hispanic Serving Institution (HSI) status, awarded by the U.S. Department of Education to 
institutions with a Latine/Hispanic student population of 25% or more. As Worcester State continues to 
attract and support Latine/Hispanic students, it demonstrates its commitment to fostering a diverse and 
inclusive learning environment, aligning with the university's Strategic Plan goals.  

The Diversity, Inclusion, Affirmative Action, and Equal Opportunity Office now offers customized on-
demand virtual DEIJ (Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Justice) learning opportunities to the campus 
community, including an online Search Committee Orientation. This training provides guidance to 
members throughout the hiring process, including an overview of the University's hiring process and 
search committee guidelines for conducting interviews, aiming to continually improve the hiring process 
and ensure the employment of a diverse and highly qualified community of engaged faculty and staff. 
The change to an online, on-demand format increases reach, efficiency, and accessibility, aligning with 
the University's Strategic Plan goals of fostering a diverse and inclusive environment.  

The University is finalizing its rollout of “Understanding and Supporting Trans and Nonbinary College 
Students," an online course developed by Genny Beemyn, Ph.D., the director of the Stonewall Center at 
UMass Amherst. This course is designed to raise awareness and further education related to the 
experiences and needs of transgender and nonbinary students, covering terminology, demographics, 
campus experiences, trans-inclusive policies and practices, and ways to be an ally.  

https://www.clarku.edu/offices/diversity-inclusion/programs/diversity-inclusion-certificate-program/
https://nebhe.org/reparative-justice/northstarcollective/
https://edexcelencia.org/research/series/emerging-hispanic-serving-institutions
https://www.hacu.net/hacu/default.asp
https://edexcelencia.org/
https://www.umass.edu/stonewall/
https://www.umass.edu/stonewall/


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 5 - 
 

  



President’s Update 
 

  

 - 6 - 
 

Student Well-Being and Support Services  

In January 2024, Thea’s Food Pantry, re-opened on the third floor of the Student Center, providing 
double the space and expanded food offerings, as compared to its previous location. To further support 
students facing food insecurity, Worcester State received an additional state-supported Hunger Free 
Campus Initiative Grant of $36,269.67 in May 2024. This funding will directly support students through 
an on-campus emergency meal program and pantry support. Additionally, the university continues to 
partner with DHE, DESE, the Department of Housing and Community Development, and the Executive 
Office of Health and Human Services' Unaccompanied Homeless Youth Commission to offer an academic 
housing scholarship program that addresses student housing insecurity and homelessness for seven 
WSU students for the 2023-24 academic year. 

Food insecurity is a significant issue on college campuses across the United States, affecting an 
estimated 23% of undergraduate students and 38% of community college students, impacting their 
academic performance, physical and mental health, and overall well-being. In response to these 
immediate needs, the Urban Action Institute (UAI) is collaborating with Student Affairs and community 
partners on a Campus Grocery project, funded by a $75,000 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) 
grant from the state. This initiative aims to provide resources and support to students experiencing food 
insecurity, helping them better manage the underlying issues contributing to the problem, such as rising 
tuition costs, limited financial aid, and the increasing cost of living. 

 

Worcester State is dedicated to supporting the diverse needs of its student population, including 
military-affiliated students, survivors of sexual violence, and those facing mental health challenges. In 
recognition of its commitment to military-affiliated students and their families, the University has been 
awarded the 2024-2025 Military Friendly School Designation-Silver Status and the 2024-2025 Military 
Spouse Friendly School Designation-Silver Status. These designations highlight the university's efforts to 
create an inclusive and supportive environment for military-affiliated students. 

 

To address the critical issue of campus sexual violence, the Office of Title IX and the Counseling Center 
have completed the first year of NASPA's Culture of Respect Initiative, a two-year program supported by 
a Student Behavioral and Mental Health grant. This initiative aims to develop and implement strategies 
to end sexual violence on campus. Additionally, WSU has partnered with the JED campus program to 
assess student mental health needs and develop a strategic plan that enhances existing strengths and 
improves student mental health. The University has successfully completed the 4-year Jed Foundation 
campus program/assessment, demonstrating its commitment to supporting students' mental well-
being. Furthermore, Worcester State continues to leverage state-funded grant resources to provide 
comprehensive mental health services, including "Resilient U," an all-encompassing wellness platform 
that offers a 24/7/365 telehealth support line, telehealth appointments, and the "Headspace" app. 
These teletherapy resources will continue to be available for the upcoming academic year, through 
grant resources. 

 

https://www.worcester.edu/campus-life/theas-food-pantry/
https://www.hungerfreecampusma.org/
https://www.hungerfreecampusma.org/
https://www.worcester.edu/urban-action-institute/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/american-rescue-plan/
https://news.worcester.edu/worcester-state-university-earns-distinction-as-a-military-friendly-school/
https://news.worcester.edu/worcester-state-university-earns-distinction-as-a-military-friendly-school/
https://www.militaryfriendly.com/schools/
https://www.naspa.org/project/culture-of-respect
https://jedcampus.org/
https://news.worcester.edu/new-resilientu-program-strengthens-student-mental-health-support/


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 7 - 
 

 



President’s Update 
 

  

 - 8 - 
 

Enrollment Management and Financial Aid  

In January 2024, WSU achieved a significant milestone by experiencing its largest number of 
concurrently enrolled high school students and hosting the DESE's statewide Early College Student 
Summit, which welcomed hundreds of Early College students to the campus, many for the first time. 
Recognizing the importance of Early College efforts, Worcester State further invested in this initiative in 
April 2024 by organizing Early College and dual enrollment (EC/DE) efforts within the Division of 
Graduate and Continuing Education (DGCE). With the stewardship and attention from the DGCE and 
EC/DE staff, the University is confident that Early College efforts will continue to flourish. Recently, 
Worcester State joined multiple new school districts and an early college consortium to announce its 
intention to apply for further designations to DESE and DHE, demonstrating the university's ongoing 
commitment to expanding access to higher education and providing valuable opportunities for high 
school students in the region. 

 

Worcester State University has taken proactive measures to mitigate the negative effects of late 
financial aid awards caused by challenges at the federal level with the revised/simplified financial aid 
application and delays in providing FAFSA/ISIR information to colleges and universities. Pre-awarding 
efforts included sending email communications to accepted students, families, and current students; 
surveying students and parents on the status of FAFSA submission; creating a website for updates; 
developing talking points for admissions and financial aid staff; extending the admissions deposit 
deadline to June 1, 2024; investing in auto-packaging functionality to automate and speed up the 
delivery of financial aid packages; requesting assistance from the US Department of Education; 
expressing expectations to Ellucian for expedient Colleague releases; hosting MassEdCO counselors in 
the Financial Aid Office; providing financial literacy counseling and updates at yield events; hosting 
virtual financial aid nights; and providing updates and awareness presentations at various meetings. 

Post-awarding efforts included producing estimated financial aid awards starting March 5, 2024, and 
official financial aid awards starting April 24, 2024. As of May 9, 2024, 2,698 official financial aid awards 
were produced, marking a 4.0% increase compared to the previous year. However, as of May 8, 2024, 
5,131 2024-2025 ISIR records were received, indicating an 11.9% decrease compared to the previous 
year. All 2,698 students who received an official financial aid award by May 9, 2024, were notified 
through multiple channels, including emails from the Financial Aid and Admissions Offices, a paper letter 
from the Financial Aid Office, and a text message from the Admissions Office. These efforts demonstrate 
Worcester State University's commitment to supporting students and families in navigating the financial 
aid process during these challenging times. 

 

Despite receiving the largest number of admission applications and accepted students for a fall semester 
in Worcester State University's history, the number of deposited students has lagged behind previous 
years, no doubt largely due to federal financial aid complications. In response, the University has 
increased its new student yield efforts throughout the fall, spring, and early summer to mitigate these 
issues. 

https://fsapartners.ed.gov/knowledge-center/library/electronic-announcements/2024-03-04/details-2024-25-fafsa-initial-institutional-student-information-records-isir-delivery-and-update-support-institutions-and-vendors
https://www.massedco.org/


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 9 - 
 

One of the key steps taken was extending the May 1st admissions deposit deadline to June 1, 2024. As 
of May 8, 2024, all accepted students received yield communications via email and text. The Admissions 
Office also hosted two financial aid nights on May 5 and 21, 2024, specifically for non-deposited 
students, coinciding with the production of financial aid awards. Furthermore, the Admissions Office 
coordinated a cross-divisional effort to call all 4,156 new students who had not deposited, starting on 
May 20, 2024. This initiative resulted in tracking each student by one of the following statuses: "Yes - 
Intend to Enroll," "Still Deciding," "No - Other Plans," or "No Answer - Leave Voicemail/Email." These 
proactive measures demonstrate Worcester State’s commitment to engaging with prospective students, 
addressing their concerns, and providing the necessary support to facilitate their enrollment decision-
making process in the context of the delay in receiving FAFSA information. 

 

Worcester States athletic teams continued to excel in their respective sports, with the Women's Ice 
Hockey team winning their third consecutive ECHA Championship, the Women's Field Hockey team 
securing the MASCAC Title, and the Men's Basketball team returning to the NCAA DIII Tournament after 
capturing their second straight MASCAC title. These accomplishments showcase the talent and 
dedication of our student athletes and the success of our athletic programs, which can be a factor in 
attracting prospective students. 

To further strengthen the university’s enrollment and retention efforts, the University’s Financial 
Sustainability Task Force recommended hiring a full-time Head Coach and Coordinator of Operations 
position for Men's & Women's Cross Country/Track & Field/Recruiting Coordinator. The position was 
created and filled in September 2023. This critical step aims to strengthen the connection between 
student athletes and campus life, thereby increasing their likelihood of persistence and success.  

 



President’s Update 
 

  

 - 10 - 
 

Operational Excellence 

Worcester State is moving toward an Operational Excellence (OpEx) culture through Continuous 
Improvement efforts across campus, focusing on achieving its vision statement and Goal 5 of the 2020-
2027 strategic plan. The introduction of Continuous Improvement concepts during the Financial 
Sustainability Task Force (FSTF) Phase II marked a turning point for the University, with more than 82 
volunteers contributing their time to identify 70 recommendations for cost reduction, revenue 
generation, and process improvement. To address the need for a comprehensive approach to 
Operational Excellence, the University formally introduced Lean Higher Education (LHE) and prioritized 
two recommendations for immediate action through Rapid Improvement Events (RIE): Maximizing 
Course Enrollment /Course Scheduling and Student Retention and Early Alert. 

The University's inaugural RIE for Maximizing Course Enrollment took place with a dedicated team of 
faculty and administration working to improve the course scheduling process. The team generated a 
two-phase implementation plan, including immediate actions for the Spring ‘24 semester and a mid-
term action plan for student advising, registration processes, and related software. The next RIE resulted 
in a rebranding from Starfish to Early Support, among other improvements. The Operational Excellence 
body structure, membership, and charter currently under development will provide oversight of the 
Continuous Improvement effort across the university, offering strategic support, project management 
guidance, and training on Lean Higher Ed and other best practices. Members of the Worcester State 
community can view the status of such initiatives by visiting the Operational Excellence And Risk 
Management website. Worcester State’s Operational Excellence aims to create more value for students 
and stakeholders, enhancing Worcester State's competitive edge as a leading public institution in New 
England. 

 

Worcester State University is at the forefront of generative AI in Massachusetts public higher education, 
focusing on workforce readiness and economic development across the Commonwealth. The Center for 
Teaching and Learning (CTL), led by Dr. Emily Soltano and Julie Habjan Boiselle, established the 
University's first faculty cohort to explore the uses and implications of generative AI in teaching and 
learning. This work culminated in an AI Studio held during the CTL's Summer Institute, where faculty led 
demonstrations and conversations among their peers on best practices and ethical considerations of 
generative AI for their teaching and research. Dr. Don Vescio is co-chair of the Massachusetts 
community college and state university AI working group, MACH (Massachusetts Artificial Intelligence 
Council for Higher Education), which is exploring the pedagogical, policy, operational, and security 
opportunities and risks of generative AI. Currently, MACH is developing shared AI policy libraries and 
common resource databases, in addition to scheduling common professional upskilling opportunities, 
such as a monthly cross-institutional AI roundtable series that introduces AI topics of special interest to 
faculty and administrative staff, and an AI operations summit for staff and administrators to be hosted 
by Worcester State this fall. Grant proposals are being developed that center on such areas as ensuring 
equitable access to generative AI by all Massachusetts students and teachers, the use of generative AI to 
better meet the needs of underrepresented and nontraditional prospective students, and the 
development of community-based AI hubs to support entrepreneurs and small businesses in their use of 
generative AI to realize new opportunities and efficiencies. 

https://www.leanhe.org/
https://www.worcester.edu/mywoostate-facstaff/administration-finance/operational-excellence/
https://www.worcester.edu/mywoostate-facstaff/administration-finance/operational-excellence/


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 11 - 
 

Dr. Vescio also served on the education working group for Governor Healey's AI Task Force, which was 
formed shortly after signing a $1.2 billion plan to modernize IT systems and an executive order to 
establish an AI Strategic Task Force that includes $100 million to create an Applied AI Hub in 
Massachusetts. As part of this initiative, the Task Force’s education working group offered a series of 
strong recommendations on the support and funding necessary for generative AI to be introduced into 
K-12 and higher education curricula in an equitable, ethical, and measurable manner.  Finally, this 
spring, the University completed extensive surveys of faculty and staff AI use (See Appendix), with a 
strong response rate yielding specific and actionable information that will assist the University in 
developing a strategic map for generative AI. This map will guide the University in the effective use of 
generative AI in the upcoming years in order to realize improved student retention, measurable learning 
outcomes, operational efficiencies, and institutional cost savings. Worcester State is partnering with EAB 
to leverage its considerable resources to assist in this mapping process, demonstrating the University's 
commitment to staying at the forefront of AI technology and its applications in higher education, 
ultimately benefiting students, faculty, and the institution. 

 

Worcester State’s fundraising efforts have seen remarkable success in the current fiscal year, with 

significant contributions from donors, new funds created, and a strong endowment performance. These 

achievements underscore the University's commitment to providing essential support for students, 

ensuring fiscal responsibility, and maintaining institutional sustainability. The following highlights 

showcase the impressive results of our fundraising initiatives: 

 

• Received $2,968,090 in support from 2,308 donors. 
• So far in FY24, The Worcester State Foundation has supported the University with over $1.2 

million, including $500,000 in direct student support. 
• At this point in FY24, we have 15 new funds created. 
• Due to the strength of our fundraising efforts, the foundation will be eligible to receive a 

Commonwealth endowment match of $555,555.00 from the state this fiscal year. 
• From the pool of nearly 670 schools nationwide that contribute data to the annual NACUBO-

Commonfund study on endowments, we show a healthy 23% increase in endowment market 
value. This number focuses on the change in market value from one year to another. This 
change reflects the net impact of various factors, including the withdrawal of funds for 
institutional expenses/support, payment of endowment fees, additions from donor gifts, and 
investment gains or losses. It places us in a favorable position relative to other colleges in 
Worcester and underscores our commitment to fiscal responsibility and institutional 
sustainability. 

• In NACUBO's current report, when compared to the nationwide 4-year public universities at the 
master's degree level, Worcester State Foundation ranks in the top 3% in change to the 
endowment market value. 

• At the end of May 2024, the endowment/market value of funds under management reached a 
record high of $45 million. This significant milestone is reflected in the Foundation Board 
treasurer's report. 

• Over $600,000 was raised in scholarships and academic awards this fiscal year. 
• The foundation's support for scholarships, awards, and internships is on track to again exceed 

the $800,000 level, marking five years in a row that it will reach that level. 

https://www.mass.gov/news/governor-healey-signs-executive-order-establishing-artificial-intelligence-ai-strategic-task-force


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 12 - 
 

• The 2024 Chandler's Challenge successfully raised over $37,179 from 863 donors. There was 
increased participation with 35 teams from across campus involved in the challenge. 

 

 

Worcester State has been awarded a competitive Massachusetts Inclusive Concurrent Enrollment 
Initiative (MAICEI) – Planning Grant in the amount of $72,614, which supports the revenue-generation 
goals of Operational Excellence. Under the direction of Dr. Sue Foo, grant funding will be used to create 
new partnerships between high schools in public school districts, families, adult service agencies, and 
public colleges and universities. These partnerships are funded to engage in an extended, structured 
planning process in preparation to submit an implementation proposal for an inclusive concurrent 
enrollment program on campus for students with severe disabilities between the ages of 18 and 22. 
Each member of the partnership will commit to developing and improving systems to facilitate the 
inclusion of students with severe disabilities in typical college and university settings, supporting college 
and career success, and providing a free and appropriate public education in the least restrictive 
environment. The planning phase will last through August 31, 2024, at which time Worcester State will 
apply for implementation funding. 

 

 

 
The Latino Education Institute (LEI) has been awarded a two-year United Way Community Investments - 
Women's Initiative grant totaling $96,720 for the LASOS (Latina Achievers in Search of Success) program. 
LASOS serves 25 6th-grade Latina girls and their mothers in a year-long after-school enrichment program 
focused on resilience-building, personal development, reducing violence, and improving self-esteem and 
mental health. The program provides socio-emotional learning, cultural enrichment, college and career 
exploration, and financial literacy to support the development of healthy, confident, and safe young 
women. LEI trains staff using evidence-based models from the Collaborative for Academic, Social, and 
Emotional Learning (CASEL) and the Search Institute's Developmental Assets Profile (DAP). This year, the 
program has been enriched with the addition of age-sensitive mental health education modules and 
over fifty related experiential learning activities. 

 

https://www.mass.edu/strategic/maicei.asp
https://www.mass.edu/strategic/maicei.asp
https://unitedwaycm.org/donor-groups/womens-initiative/
https://unitedwaycm.org/donor-groups/womens-initiative/
https://worcester.edu/latino-education-institute/programs-at-the-lei/
https://casel.org/
https://casel.org/
https://searchinstitute.org/resources-hub/developmental-assets-framework


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 13 - 
 

Appendices 
 

Worcester State’s All Employee AI Survey 

 

 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1hGo5FyAz0yBA7pk7GDc-wcC0K6S3YAAb/view?usp=sharing


President’s Update 
 

  

 - 14 - 
 

Worcester State’s Faculty AI Survey 

 

 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1whbG5bp7Bozvers38teeaVs9ogCmsQe5/view?usp=sharing




OVERVIEW
 Strategic Plan Framework         1
 Introduction            2
 All Metrics Progress                           3
 All Initiatives Progress         4
 Diversity, Equity, Inclusion & Justice                     5
 Continuous Improvement   6

GOAL 1: ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE & DISTINCTION
 Strategies           7
 Key Progress Indicators        8
 Metrics and Initiatives Progress      9
 Accomplishments         10

GOAL 2: STUDENT SUPPORT & SUCCESS
 Strategies           11
 Key Progress Indicators        12
 Metrics and Initiatives Progress      13
 Accomplishments         14

GOAL 3: MARKETING & ENROLLMENT
 Strategies           15
 Key Progress Indicators        16
 Metrics and Initiatives Progress      17
 Accomplishments         18

GOAL 4: COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & PUBLIC GOOD
 Strategies           19
 Key Progress Indicators        20
 Metrics and Initiatives Progress      21
 Accomplishments         22

GOAL 5: PEOPLE & CULTURE
 Strategies           23
 Key Progress Indicators        24
 Metrics and Initiatives Progress      25
 Accomplishments                                  26

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | i

CONTENTS



GOAL 6: RESOURCES & INFRASTRUCTURE
 Strategies           27
 Key Progress Indicators        28
 Metrics and Initiatives Progress      29
 Accomplishments         30

SUMMARY              31
            
APPENDIX KEYS        33
          
APPENDICES
 Appendix A: Metrics Progress  A-1
 Appendix B: Initiatives Progress B-1
 Appendix C: Revisions       C-1
 Appendix D: Glossary      D-1

CONTENTS

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | ii



STRATEGIC PLAN FRAMEWORK

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 1



INTRODUCTION
The Worcester State University Strategic Plan 2020-2027, Beyond 150: 
Lead, Succeed, and Engage was designed so that progress can be 
measured annually and compared longitudinally. While some analyses are 
subjective, the inclusion of metrics with benchmarks and targets provides 
objective data to inform decision-making. 

In 2023, the Board of Trustees approved a two-year extension to the plan 
given that the implementation began during the COVID-19 pandemic and 
the resulting financial uncertainty. The plan will be in effect until 2027. 

Also in 2023, continuous improvement was added as an overarching 
theme and new strategies, initiatives, and metrics have been created to 
measure the success of our operational excellence. More information is 
included in this report on page 6.   

The University continued to make significant progress in the third 
year of the plan. This report highlights the progress achieved in 2022-
2023, including key progress indicators, implementation of initiatives, 
longitudinal metrics, and selected accomplishments for each goal. 

Successes include: 

37% of all metrics met or exceeded the target. 

40% of all initiatives were completed or show significant progress. 

73% of metrics related to Community Engagement & Public Good and 

68% of metrics related to People & Culture met or exceeded the target. 

56% of initiatives relating to Student Support and Success and 41% of 
initiatives relating to DEIJ were completed or show significant progress.

Improvements from 2021-22 to 2022-23:

10% increase in experiential learning opportunities.

14% increase in undergraduate Latine enrollment.

7% increase in Latine six-year graduation rates.

9% increase in employee donor retention rates.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 2



METRICS PROGRESS

All Metrics Diversity, Equity,
Inclusion & Justice

Academic 
Excellence

Student 
Success

Marketing & 
Enrollment

Community 
Engagement

People &
Culture

Resources & 
Infrastructure

Continuous 
Improvement

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 3



INITIATIVES PROGRESS

All Metrics Diversity, Equity,
Inclusion & Justice

Continuous 
Improvement

Academic 
Excellence

Student 
Success

Marketing & 
Enrollment

Community 
Engagement

People &
Culture

Resources & 
Infrastructure

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 4



People-Arrows DEIJ
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Justice (DEIJ) is incorporated throughout 
the Strategic Plan’s goals, strategies, initiatives, and metrics. 

5%

53%

26%

15%

Planned In Progress Significant Progress Completed

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 5

Metrics Progress to Target

Initiative Completion Target



 CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
As part of the University’s financial sustainability efforts, Worcester State 
has committed to intentionally and systematically cultivating a culture of 
continuous improvement and operational excellence.

Continuous improvement is a data-informed approach to improving 
processes and systems through small, incremental changes that 
collectively lead to significant improvements in efficiency, cost savings, 
and student success.

By embracing continuous improvement, Worcester State aims to foster a 
culture of innovation, efficiency, and adaptability, enabling us to navigate 
the challenges of a rapidly evolving higher education landscape.  

As with the overarching lens of diversity, equity, inclusion, and justice 
(DEIJ), strategic plan initiatives and metrics will be aligned with 
continuous improvement practices.

Revisions related to continuous improvement:
Strategy 5.5 was changed from "Foster a culture of assessment and 
data-based decision making" to "Establish a culture of continuous 
improvement and data-informed decision making". 

Two initiatives were added under Strategy 5.5: "Review, prioritize, and 
implement the recommendations of the Fiscal Sustainability Plan" and 
"Optimize processes to improve efficiency and effectiveness".

A new initiative was added under Strategy 6.1: "Explore opportunities to 
reduce cost and or increase revenue".

Starting with the review of AY 2023-2024 new metrics will be added to 
assess continuous improvement.

A comprehensive list of revisions can be found in Appendix C. 

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 6



ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE & DISTINCTION

Offer high-quality programs that develop the intellectual and 
personal potential of every student and prepare the next generation 
of leaders, innovators, and scholars.

1
Promote university-wide innovation in curricular program 
offerings and course modalities.

2
Support and celebrate excellent teaching and expand teaching 
development opportunities.

3
Leverage our location to create distinctive academic and 
leadership opportunities.

4
Offer a vibrant and rigorous general education that supports 
the liberal arts in the 21st century.

5
Enhance support for applied, interdisciplinary, and inclusive 
scholarly and creative work.

6
Create a more vibrant intellectual life on campus and a culture 
of high academic standards.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 7



 KEY PROGRESS INDICATORS

Experiential Learning Online Sections

Grant Funds Awarded Internships, Practica & Fieldwork

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 8

...... Target



 METRICS AND INITIATIVES

Metrics Progress to Target

Initiative Implementation Progress

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 9



 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Dr. Aimée Delaney, Associate Professor of Criminal 
Justice, won the Academy of Criminal Justice Sciences 
2023 Outstanding Book Award for her book, “Norms 
of Violence: Violent Socialization Processes and the 
Spillover Effect for Youth Crime”.

English Professor Dr. Heather Treseler’s essay, 
“My Search for Elizabeth Bishop” was recognized in 
The Best American Essays 2022 and listed in Notable 
Essays and Literary Nonfiction of 2021.

Dr. Benjamin Jee, Associate Professor of Psychology, 
was awarded a National Science Foundation Grant 
in collaboration with universities in Massachusetts, 
California and Illinois to improve students’ analogical 
thinking and reasoning skills.

Visual & Performing Arts recognition:

Chemistry students Sydney Demers and Joshua Fung-A-Fat and faculty 
Dr. Jeremy Andreatta, Dr. Margaret Kerr, and Dr. Weichu Xu, published 
their article, “Cultivating Student Research Interests in Undergraduate 
Organic Chemistry Course Through Class Activity” in the peer reviewed 
Journal of Chemistry Education. 

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 10

Dr. Carlos Odria, Assistant Professor, was nominated 
for Boston Music Award’s Latin Artist of the Year.

Student Libia Gonçalves’ artwork was awarded an 
ArtsWorcester Juror’s Prize.

Students Ariana Strout (dramaturgy) and Julian Wagner (music 
composition) were awarded Kennedy Center American College 
Theatre Festival 2023 Merit Awards for their work on “Rosencrantz 
and Guildenstern are Dead”.



STUDENT SUPPORT & SUCCESS

Provide all students a transformative and holistic educational 
experience with a path to timely completion and a solid preparation 
for advanced studies or career success.

 1 Increase overall retention and graduation rates and close 
achievement gaps.

 2 Promote student leadership development opportunities 
proactively and equitably.

 3 Embrace student-centeredness as a guiding principle and 
adopt holistic student support.

 4 Ensure all students have access to the resources, services, and 
technology they need.

 5 Adopt a mentoring advising model and ensure effective 
student support.

 6 Create a robust campus life for all students and promote 
connection and community.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 11



 KEY PROGRESS INDICATORS

Cohort First Year Retention Rate

Cohort Six Year Graduation Rate

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 12

...... Target



 METRICS AND INITIATIVES

Metrics Progress to Target

Initiative Implementation Progress

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 13



 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Worcester State received a $75,000 Hunger Free Campus 
Initiative grant to address food insecurity. In addition, 
the Urban Action Institute and Chartwells partnered on 
the Empty Bowls Fundraiser to benefit Thea’s Pantry on 
campus and the Chandler Magnet School Food Pantry.

The Title IX Office led the effort for Worcester State 
to join the Culture of Respect Collective, a two-year 
program that brings together institutions of higher 
education who are dedicated to ending campus sexual 
violence and guides them through a rigorous process of 
self-assessment and targeted organizational change. 

The first Wellness Expo, also sponsored by 
the Rosen Cancer Awareness Fund, brought 
together students, faculty, staff, and the 
community to promote cancer awareness and 
overall wellness.  

The Counseling Center expanded mental and emotional 
health services through the launch of Resilient U, which 
offers a 24/7 mental health support line, telehealth 
counseling, psychiatry, and a host of online wellness 
resources. 

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 14

A year-long comprehensive program for cancer 
awareness, research, education, and student support  
funded by The Rosen Cancer Awareness Fund kicked off 
with Grit ‘N Wit, a confidence boosting, team-building, 
mental and fitness challenge obstacle course, aimed at 
increasing cancer awareness.



MARKETING & ENROLLMENT

Be attractive and accessible to a diverse population of students 
within an increasingly competitive recruitment environment.

1 Raise regional and national visibility and recognition for 
academic excellence, value, and impact.

2 More effectively differentiate Worcester State from its peers.

3
Increase the diversity of the faculty and staff to better reflect 
the study body.

4 Expand our presence in local secondary education and 
community college sectors.

5
Position the University as a first-choice university for under-
represented and under-served students.

6
Invest resources necessary to grow enrollment in graduate 
and online programs.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 15



Undergraduate Enrollment: 
African American/Black

 KEY PROGRESS INDICATORS

Undergraduate Enrollment:  
Latine

Graduate Enrollment:                   
African American/Black

Graduate Enrollment:             
Latine

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 16

...... Target



 METRICS AND INITIATIVES

Metrics Progress to Target

Initiative Implementation Progress

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 17



 ACCOMPLISHMENTS
The new Worcester State website was awarded a 2022 
Davey Awards Silver Medal for Best University Website and 
the University’s “WooLife” video won an Association of 
Marketing and Communication Professionals 2022 Viddy 
Award for best short video in the education category.

Kristie McNamara, Director of the Office of Student 
Involvement and Leadership Development, received 
the National Association for Campus Activities 
(NACA) Northeast’s Donald L. McCullough Award. 
This award is given to an individual who has 
contributed significantly to NACA Northeast and 
the field of student activities.

Librarian and Archivist Ross Griffiths promoted Worcester State’s rich 
history by sharing historical images, objects, books, and other materials 
from the Worcester State Archives, special collections, and rare books 
collections weekly on social media.

Worcester State received multiple accolades for its programs including: 

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 18

Grade of "A" from the National Council on Teacher Quality Elementary 
Reading Education for the Reading program. 

The RN to BS program ranked "#1 Nursing Program in Massachusetts” by 
RegisteredNursing.org.

Biotechnology rated the "#1 Best Value Undergraduate Biotechnology 
Program in New England” by College Factual and listed in the “Top 10 
Biotechnology Degrees in the U.S.” by College Choice. 



COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & PUBLIC GOOD

Have an impact beyond campus through leading-edge scholarship 
and creative activities, civic engagement, and partnerships with 
local, regional, and global communities.

puzzle-piece 1
Expand and deepen connections between academic 
departments and the community.

puzzle-piece 2
Foster ongoing interactions between the University and the 
community.

puzzle-piece 3
Establish WSU as a research and policy hub, developing 
solutions to meet regional challenges.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 19



puzzle-piece KEY PROGRESS INDICATORS

Students in Civic Engagement Courses:               
ALANA / BIPOC  

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 20

...... Target

Students in Civic Engagement Courses



puzzle-piece METRICS AND INITIATIVES

Initiative Completion Progress

Metrics Progress to Target

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 21



puzzle-piece ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The LEI Health Ambassador program received 
multiple commendations for their service 
during the pandemic, including a certificate of 
appreciation from the City of Worcester, an official 
proclamation from Worcester City Council and 
the United Way's Edwin B. Coghlin Award for 
Community Service. 

The Office of Multicultural Affairs hosted the 
Brotherhood and Sisterhood Leadership Conference 
to empower high school students, college students, 
and professionals through team building workshops 
and to foster a connection to the first generation 
and ALANA/BIPOC community.

The Education Department partnered with 
the Guild of St. Agnes to open the University 
Collaborative Early Education Center, an innovative 
childcare center and teaching lab that will allow 
Worcester State early childhood education majors 
to work, learn, and observe in real classroom 
settings.

The Women’s Basketball team hosted the 13th 
Annual Math Madness event, with 500 students 
from May Street School and Tatnuck Magnet School 
participating in an afternoon of exciting basketball 
and mathematical challenges.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 22



PEOPLE & CULTURE

Nurture an inclusive campus culture that promotes a shared 
commitment to excellence, innovation, collaboration, and 
accountability.

USERS 1 Establish Worcester State as an even more welcoming 
environment for all.

USERS 2 Recruit, retain and reward high-quality and diverse faculty 
and staff.

USERS 3 Continue to equip and encourage faculty and staff to address 
the changing needs of students.

USERS 4 Promote greater unity, communication, and a sense of 
institutional pride across campus.

USERS 5 Foster a culture of continuous improvement and data-
informed decision making.

USERS 6
Institutionalize policies and practices to respond effectively to 
unanticipated crises.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 23



Retention of Full-time Faculty

USERS KEY PROGRESS INDICATORS

Retention of Full-time Staff

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 24

...... Target



USERS METRICS AND INITIATIVES

Metrics Progress to Target

Initiative Implementation Progress

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 25



USERS ACCOMPLISHMENTS
Dr. Danielle Morales, Assistant Professor of Urban 
Studies, and Dr. Nafisa Tanjeem, Associate Professor 
of Interdisciplinary Studies, were selected by the 
New England Board of Higher Education to take 
part in the North Star Collective Faculty Fellowship, 
which supports early-career ALANA/BIPOC faculty. 

Student Affairs opened the Campus Ministry 
Prayer and Meditation Lounge, a new prayer and 
meditation space for students to meditate and 
pray in private. The non-denominational space 
includes a lounge that can be used for faith-based 
organizations and a separate prayer room.

The University 
celebrated its 
first Unity Day 
including a Unity 
Walk with a “Black 
Lives Matter” flag 
raising ceremony. 

LGBTQIA+ graduating seniors were celebrated at 
Worcester State's first annual Lavender Graduation. 
The event was organized by Alison Park, the new 
Assistant Director of the LGBTQIA+ Resource Center. 

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 26

The University 
also held a “Stop 
Asian Hate” flag 
raising ceremony 
in support of the 
Asian members 
of the Worcester 
community. 

The University hosted Black+Mental Health+Matters, a special interactive 
arts workshop for students meant to center Black voices that are often 
quieted, create a safe environment for people to communicate about 
their experiences, decrease stigma around mental health, and foster 
healing.



RESOURCES & INFRASTRUCTURE

Develop revenue adequate to support the mission and priorities 
and invest in infrastructure and technology with a commitment to 
financial and environmental sustainability.

 1 Develop new and sustain existing sources of revenue.

 2 Expand philanthropic support and grow the endowment.

 3
Ensure technology, facilities, and systems can support 
operational needs and strategic goals.

 4
Ensure policies and practices promote greater efficiency, 
entrepreneurial thinking, and equity.

 5
Develop redundant systems and staffing capacities to protect 
operations from disruption.

 6
Commit to addressing the growing challenges of climate 
change.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 27



Donor Retention Rate

 KEY PROGRESS INDICATORS

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 28

Annual Savings from Electricity Offsets

...... Target



  METRICS AND INITIATIVES

Metrics Progress to Target

Initiative Implementation Progress

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 29



  ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Financial Sustainability Task Force Report was completed and 
presented to the Board of Trustees. The report was developed with input 
from the 71 faculty and staff who participated in Phase 2 of the project. 

The Worcester State Foundation Golf Tournament raised 
$127,000 for Worcester State student scholarships. More 
than 200 alumni and friends of the University participated 
in the event. 

Two projects were selected for Rapid Improvement Events: course 
scheduling and student retention and early warning. The week-long 
project asked faculty and staff to examine the present state and develop 
an improved plan for the future. 

The Admissions Office opened a new Welcome 
Center on the first floor of the Administration 
Building to enhance campus visitors’ experiences. 
The space features comfortable seating, a 
conference table, and a large digital screen and can 
accommodate 20 or more people. 

The Counseling Center was redesigned and expanded. 
The enclosed reception area and a rear exit will afford 
more privacy and the two additional office spaces will 
help staff meet the increasing demand for student 
support.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 30

The Worcester State Foundation received a record $12,250,000 in 
donations in Fiscal Year 2022-2023, with $1,860,000 for scholarships. The 
Foundation transferred nearly $2,500,000 to the University including 
$1,040,000 in direct student aid. 



ANALYSIS
The results of this year's assessment demonstrate that Worcester State 
has continued to make significant progress in realizing the goals of 
Beyond 150: Lead, Succeed & Engage.  

However, there are initiatives that have not yet been implemented. The 
University should focus on developing an accelerated degree program for 
non-traditional students, seeking additional funding to support increased 
graduate assistantships, evaluating CESO staffing levels so the Director 
can focus on revenue generation, and evaluating the organization and 
staffing of ITS.

Initiatives relating to LASC also have yet to be realized, but given that 
general education is undergoing a review, these initiatives should be re-
examined after that process is complete. 

As mentioned in previous progress reports, initiatives have not been 
assigned to specific areas for implementation and assessment. As a 
result, many initiatives have not been implemented university-wide. 
Instead, individual departments, offices, or committees have begun 
implementation within their areas. 

Without a designated leader to ensure implementation and assessment 
throughout the University, we will not be able to effectively measure 
success. In addition, if implementation occurs only in some areas, the 
benefits will be limited to only those students, faculty, and staff who 
interact with those areas. 

The following page highlights the initiatives that should be assigned to 
a specific person, department, or committee to oversee implementation 
and assessment. The designee would be responsible for identifying the 
actions taken across campus to realize the initiative, ensuring that areas 
that have not begun implementation begin doing so, and collecting data 
on the progress of implementation.  

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 31



Strategic
Identify “signature programs” setting us apart from other competitors.
Deliver educational opportunities of strategic value to the region.
Develop divisional and departmental strategic plans.

Academic
Establish common practices for online courses.
Increase support for universal design/accessibility in courses.
Encourage a culture in which advising is a year-round process.

Communication
Publicize faculty and staff publications and accomplishments.
Enhance internal and cross-divisional awareness of roles and accomplishments.
Translated materials into foreign languages.
Significantly enhance internal communication.

Marketing 
Promote Worcester State's rich history.
Highlight Worcester State’s role within higher education.
Better promote existing community partnerships and outreach activities.
Position Worcester State as “Worcester’s University”.

Student Support
Identify and remove barriers impeding student access to services.
Ensure all students have the technology and tools necessary for academic success.
Raise funds for ancillary expenses to support retention.
Improve student belonging, particularly under-served and under-represented 
students. 
Address international student needs.
Incorporate graduate student-specific resources in all support offices.
Support graduate student research.
Provide more opportunities for graduate students to socialize.

Community
Connect the Worcester State community to local affinity groups.
Develop community focused endeavors that address local challenges.

Employees
Offer competitive compensation and contemporary employment options.
Increase professional development and career growth opportunities for staff.
Improve onboarding for new employees.
Coordinate a formal mentoring program for faculty and staff.
Recognize faculty and staff accomplishments through awards and other benefits.
Introduce optional social activities that bring faculty and staff together.

Resources
Expand funding for research and scholarship.
Invest resources to support the Library as the academic center of campus.
Evaluate staffing for the attainment of graduate enrollment goals.
Formalize a process to decrease redundant technology purchases.
Assess current space utilization and re-allocate space.

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 32



APPENDIX KEYS

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | 33



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | A-1

APPENDIX A - METRICS PROGRESS
Academic Excellence & Distinction

GOAL DEIJ CI METRIC TARGET 2021 2022 PROGRESS TREND

1

 New programs (cumulative) 30 28 32 107% 

  Total UD evening programs 20 11 11 55% 

  Total 100% online programs 10 8 8 80% 

 Total master's pathway programs 20 20 17 85% 

  UD blended courses 15% 10% 11% 73% 

  UD online courses 25% 25% 22% 88% 

2

CTL funding $10,000 $2,786 $2,786* 28% 

Prof. development: Teaching 100 71 72 72% 

 Prof. development: Distance education 15 19 9 60% 

 Prof. development: Accessibility 15 18 11 73% 

3

 Internships, practica, or fieldwork 25% 16% 15% 60% 

 Student networking opportunities 200 126 204 102% 

 Career/advanced studies workshops 200 182 167 84% 

4

 Online LASC sections 50% 27% 25% 50% 

 Diversity sections 10% 6% 6% 60% 

 Technology workshops 5 10 9 180% 

5

 Grants: Applications 50 49 38 76% 

 Grants: Awarded 35 29 23 66% 

 Grant funds: Applied $9 M $8.3 M $6.8 M 76% 

 Grant funds: Awarded $4 M $3.1 M $3.3 M 83% 

 Faculty external grant applications 10 14 15 150% 

6

Study away students 75 27 30 40% 

 Study away students: ALANA/BIPOC 32% 19% 28% 88% 

Honors students 300 341 386 129% 

 Honors students: ALANA/BIPOC 32% 21% 23% 72% 

 Information literacy workshops 100 106 96 96% 

 Experiential learning sections 40% 31% 34% 85% 

Programs utilizing portfolios 30 38 38 127% 

Academic events 200 217 314 157% 

* CTL received additional trust funds: $14,000 for CTL Equity Fellow and $41,000 for Early Career Tenure Track Faculty



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | A-2

Student Support & Success
GOAL DEIJ CI METRIC TARGET 2021 2022 PROGRESS TREND

 1

Retention 85% 80% 73% 86% 

 Retention: African American 85% 89% 90% 106% 

 Retention: Latine 85% 81% 77% 91% 

6Y graduation 60% 59% 61% 102% 

 6Y graduation: African American 60% 51% 52% 87% 

 6Y graduation: Latine 60% 44% 47% 78% 

Transfer 4Y graduation 60% 62% 60% 100% 

 Transfer 4Y graduation: African American 60% 51% 52% 87% 

 Transfer 4Y graduation: Latine 60% 48% 53% 88% 

 Students receiving financial aid 90% 88% 88% 98% 

 2
Students in leadership 200 181 195 98% 

 Students in leadership: ALANA/BIPOC 32% 41% 39% 122% 

 3

 Mental health counselors 7 5 7 100% 

 Students using counseling 500 652 700 140% 

 Events: Mental health/well-being 200 170 243 122% 

 4

 Merit scholarships 175 153 158 90% 

 Merit scholarships: ALANA/BIPOC 32% 42% 46% 144% 

 Laptops for loan 200 206 65 33% 

 Students using SAS 700 656 643 92% 

 Support offices with extended hours 90% 75% 80% 89% 

 Support offices with virtual services 100% 96% 97% 97% 

 5

 Faculty using Starfish 75% 48% 48% 64% 

 Starfish actions 20,000 12,673 15,251 76% 

Prof. development: Advising 25 44 16 64% 

Informal events: Students & faculty 150 66 129 86% 

 6

 Belonging: ALANA/BIPOC 4.0 3.5* 3.6 90% 

 Belonging: LGBTQ+ 4.0 3.6* 3.7 93% 

 Belonging: Disabilities 4.0 3.6* 3.6 90% 

 Belonging: Commuter 4.0 3.7* 3.9 98% 

 Belonging: Transfer 4.0 3.8* 3.7 93% 

 Belonging: Graduate 4.0 3.7* 3.9 98% 

 Belonging: First gen 4.0 3.7* 3.8 95% 

 Belonging: Adult learners 4.0 3.7* 3.9 98% 

Events: Social 500 556 570 114% 

 Events: Commuter 100 55 101 101% 

 Events: Graduate 18 5 14 78% 

 Events: Adult learners 10 7 10 100% 

*Campus Climate Survey deployed in 2020



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | A-3

Marketing &  Enrollment
GOAL DEIJ CI METRIC TARGET 2021 2022 PROGRESS TREND

 1

UD enrollment 5,200 4,640 4,478 86% 

 UD enrollment: African American 10% 8% 9% 90% 

 UD enrollment: Latine 15% 14% 16% 107% 

 2
MajorPlus graduation 100% 42% 48% 48% 

 MajorPlus graduation: ALANA/BIPOC 100% 42% 50% 50% 

 3
 Faculty: ALANA/BIPOC 31% 17% 20% 65% 

 Staff: ALANA/BIPOC 31% 25% 26% 84% 

 4
 Dual enroll & early college courses 100 72 85 85% 

Events: Potential students 500 654 544 109% 

 5   Accelerated degree programs 5 8 8 160% 

 6

GD enrollment 840 777 833 99% 

 GD enrollment: African American 6% 2% 2% 33% 

 GD enrollment: Latinx 9% 6% 7% 78% 

 Graduate assistantships 50 46 44 88% 



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | A-4

Community Engagement & Public Good
GOAL DEIJ CI METRIC TARGET 2021 2022 PROGRESS TREND

 1
 Advisory boards w/ community members 30 29 29 97% 

 Local partnerships 500 651 697 139% 

 2
 Faculty/staff engaged with community 150 167 172 115% 

Events: Alumni 50 48 44 88% 

 3

Civic engagement course students 3,000 3,142 3,097 103% 

 Civic engagement students: ALANA/BIPOC 32% 34% 36% 113% 

Faculty publications & presentations 150 142 207 138% 

Student-faculty scholarly/creative pursuits 150 160 164 109% 

Student publications & presentations 150 269 330 220% 

Commonwealth Honors Project students 30% 31% 21% 70% 

Celebration of Scholarship & Creativity students 200 177 205 103% 



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | A-5

People & Culture
GOAL DEIJ CI METRIC TARGET 2021 2022 PROGRESS TREND

 1

 Single-use bathrooms Maintain 22 22 100% 

 Gender neutral bathrooms Maintain 10 15 100% 

 Events: DEIJ 200 185 353 177% 

 2

Retention: FT staff 95% 92% 99% 104% 

 Retention: FT staff: ALANA/BIPOC 95% 93% 97% 102% 

Retention: FT faculty 95% 94% 100% 105% 

 Retention: FT faculty: ALANA/BIPOC 95% 98% 100% 105% 

Prof. development: Staff 100 121 153 153% 

Prof. development: Faculty 100 109 140 140% 

Prof. development funds for faculty $100,000 $70,059 $70,961 71% 

 3

 Prof. development: DEIJ 50 107 146 292% 

 Prof. development: Mental health 50 42 62 124% 

 FT faculty-staff w/ DEIJ training 100% 96% 97% 97% 

 4

Awards/recognition: Faculty 10 22 15 150% 

Awards/recognition: Staff 10 10 7 70% 

Events: Faculty/staff social 50 26 67 134% 

 5

 Data stored in Colleague 90% 72% 79% 88% 

 Acad. programs with regular assessment 100% 95% 95% 95% 

 Departments submitting Strategic Plan data 100% 82% 88% 88% 



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | A-6

Resources & Infrastructure
GOAL DEIJ CI METRIC TARGET 2021 2022 PROGRESS TREND

 1

Marketing budget for DGCE 15% 20% 10% 67% 

 Revenue: CESO $500,000 $214,052 $76,454 15% 

 Net Revenue: CESO $500,000 -- -$435,106 -87% --

 Revenue: DGCE $9 M $9.4 M $9.7 M 108% 

 Net revenue: DGCE $4 M $2.7 M $2.4 M 60% 

 2

Overall endowment $50 M $40.4 M $50.7 M 101% 

 Funds transferred to the University $5 M $2.1 M $2.5 M 50% 

Unrestricted foundation dollars 15% 14% 12% 80% 

 Donor retention: Alumni 75% 61% 58% 77% 

 Donor retention: Employees 75% 68% 74% 99% 

Foundation scholarship students 500 345 421 84% 

 Foundation students: ALANA/BIPOC 32% 40% 35% 109% 

 Total Student Emergency Funds raised $200,000 $196,425 $206,000 103% 

 Total Student Emergency Fund grants 200 248 300 150% 

 3
 IT Staff FTE 36 28 28 78% 

Prof. development: Technology 15 15 12 80% 

 4

  Digital forms and processes 95% 99% 99% 104% 

 Partially remote staff 25% 25% 21% 84% 

 Remote staff 10% 1% 1% 10% 

 5  Cross-trained staff within dept. 80% 79% 80% 100% 

 6

Carbon footprint (MTCO2e) 5,445 8,118 10,634 195% 

Electric vehicle charging stations 10 8 8 80% 

Sustainability memberships 3 1 1 33% 

 Avoided costs due to energy off-sets $100,000 $84,237 -- 84% --

 Total energy savings $1 M $851,558 -- 85% --

 Annual savings from electricity offset $1.5 M $1.5 M $881,079 59% 

 Net metering credits $2 M $494,192 $2,27 M* 114% 

*Prior year calculations did not include all credits



APPENDIX B - INITIATIVE PROGRESS
Academic Excellence & Distinction

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | B-1

GOAL DEIJ CI STATUS INITIATIVE

1

   Offer more online and blended courses

  Convert Intersession to be 100% online and expand the term

  Develop new programs to align with workforce needs and student interest

  Implement the Major-Plus requirement as reflected in the RASE plan

 Transform interdisciplinary concentrations into minors

  Establish a department of interdisciplinary studies

  Introduce additional 3+ and 4+ programs

2

 Ensure adequate resources are allocated to the CTL

 Hire an instructional designer in the CTL

   Establish common practices for online courses

   Increase support for universal design/accessibility in courses

 Support interdisciplinary teaching

 Provide opportunities for faculty to share ideas with each other

3
  Deliver educational opportunities of strategic value to the region

  Expand student career exploration and networking opportunities

4

  Provide a comprehensive review and needs assessment of LASC

  Annually review LASC goals and outcomes

  Offer an online track for all LASC classes

  Adopt a 3-credit diversity course requirement

5

  Establish a fully functioning Office of Grants and Sponsored Research

 Expand funding for research and scholarship

  Support graduate student research

 Strengthen and publicize faculty research

6

 Invest resources to support the Library as the academic center of campus

  Provide experiential learning opportunities for all students

 Increase study abroad participation

 Cultivate a vibrant intellectual life on campus



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | B-2

Student Support & Success
GOAL DEJI CI STATUS INITIATIVE

 1

 Increase first-year retention rates

 Increase 6-year graduation rates

  Reduce first-year retention rate gap between ALANA/BIPOC and white students

  Reduce 6-year graduation rate gap between ALANA/BIPOC and white students

  Reimagine the course scheduling model

  Continue to offer practices that allow for transfer credit equivalencies

  Invest in financial aid to encourage student retention

   Streamline the process for awarding transfer credit

 2

 Enhance leadership programs for students

  Adopt a wide-ranging, inclusive definition of student leadership

 Promote student leadership development opportunities

 3

  Increase awareness and resources aligned with the 8 domains of student wellness

  Address student emotional and mental well-being

  Adapt FYE services to meet needs of a changing student body

 Increase the number of full-time faculty involved with FYS

  Champion a student-centered approach to all university operations

   Centralize student resources in one location

 4

   Expand student support services beyond the traditional workday

   Work toward making all spaces ADA-compliant and providing assistive technology

  Incorporate graduate student-specific resources in all support offices

  Ensure all students have the technology and tools necessary for academic success

   Address non-tuition-related financial challenges with creative solutions

   Promote compliance with student educational accommodations

  Implement virtual financial aid sessions for accepted/current students

   Identify and remove barriers impeding student access to services

   Find ways to make course materials low or no cost

 5

  Encourage a culture in which advising is a year-round process

  Provide opportunities for informal student-faculty interactions

   Improve the registration process and advising for graduate students

   Support advising in high-enrolled majors

 6

  Expand extracurricular and recreational programs for all students

  Address international student needs

  Provide more opportunities for graduate students to socialize

  Improve student belonging, particularly under-served and under-represented students

  Facilitate transfer student transition and success.



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | B-3

Marketing & Enrollment
GOAL DEJI CI STATUS INITIATIVE

 1

  Align advertising across modalities

  Re-platform and enhance content on the website

   Effectively engage diverse audiences on the website

 Bolster regional and national visibility by supporting research and travel

 Highlight Worcester State’s role within higher education

 2

 Boldly promote the RASE Plan

  Identify “signature programs” setting us apart from other competitors

  Position Worcester State as “Worcester’s University”

  Standardize branding for all materials

 Reinforce a culture of being on-brand at off-campus events

 Promote Worcester State's rich history

 3    Increase diversity in departments that provide direct student support

 4

  Continue to offer Early College and dual enrollment courses

 Implement programs that bring greater numbers of prospective students to campus

  Offer support to high school students on the college application process

 Partner with high schools and community colleges

 5

  Provide comprehensive support for first-generation and ALANA/BIPOC students

  Design accelerated programs for non-traditional age students

  Develop a strategy for enrolling non-traditional age students

  Increase the degrees that can be completed online or in the evening

  Create a marketing campaign for diverse undergraduates

   Translate materials into foreign languages

  Offer a ‘Life Work Portfolio’ program for non-traditional age learners

 6

  Evaluate staffing for the attainment of graduate enrollment goals

  Produce a marketing campaign for graduate and continuing education

 Invest in online course development by providing incentives

  Seek additional funding to support increased graduate assistantships



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | B-4

Community Engagement & Public Good
GOAL DEJI CI STATUS INITIATIVE

 1

 Expand the utilization of advisory bodies with external members

  Collaborate with the community to promote dialogues and experiences

  Provide opportunities and partnerships that support the DHE equity agenda

 2

 Maintain an open, neighborly campus environment

  Better promote existing community partnerships and outreach activities

  Connect the Worcester State community to local affinity groups

 Expand connection, engagement, and networking for alumni

 Support efforts to establish Worcester as a vibrant location to live

 3

   Develop community focused endeavors that address local challenges

 Publicize faculty and staff publications and accomplishments

  Compile a catalog of faculty and staff expertise



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | B-5

People & Culture
GOAL DEJI CI STATUS INITIATIVE

 1

  Provide dedicated support and services for LGBTQ+ students

  Expand affinity-based connections across the campus community

  Foster campus-wide cultural fluency and humility

 2

 Offer competitive compensation and contemporary employment options

 Recruit and retain under-represented and marginalized faculty and staff

 Increase professional development and career growth opportunities for staff

  Improve onboarding for new employees

  Coordinate a formal mentoring program for faculty and staff

 Explore a “teaching post-doc” program to attract new PhDs to teach

  Make a financial commitment to hiring more full-time faculty members

 3

  Offer multiple levels of training relating to diversity, equity, and inclusion

  Offer a diversity certificate program for faculty, staff, and students

   Address accessibility in all modalities

  Provide professional development on inclusive teaching strategies

 4

  Acquire and deploy technology to improve communication

  Significantly enhance internal communication

 Introduce optional social activities that bring faculty and staff together

  Enhance internal and cross-divisional awareness of roles and accomplishments

 Strategically communicate student, faculty, and staff accomplishments

 Recognize faculty and staff accomplishments through awards and other benefits

 5

  Build a data warehouse

  Develop divisional and departmental strategic plans

  Collect data centrally through Assessment and Planning

  Utilize Colleague for all data entry and storage

  Formalize data entry procedures for each office to reduce errors in data

  Emphasize transparency and accountability by providing access to data and reports.

  Review, prioritize, and implement the FSTF recommendations

  Optimize processes to improve efficiency and effectiveness.

 6

  Ensure that all units have plans and training to maintain operations

  Engage in succession planning for key positions across the organization

  Develop and regularly assess emergency preparedness plans



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | B-6

Resources & Infrastructure
GOAL DEJI CI STATUS INITIATIVE

 1

  Invest in DGCE marketing and staffing

  Provide training and incentives to develop new streams of revenue

  Lobby for increased funding for public higher education

  Evaluate CESO staffing levels so the Director can focus on revenue generation

  Explore opportunities to reduce cost and/or increase revenue

 2

 Broaden and increase the base and retention of alumni donors

 Increase the endowment

 Increase the amount of financial support transferred to the University

  Grow funds to increase scholarships available to students

  Establish a dedicated emergency response fund

  Survey and connect donors with areas they are interested in

  Raise funds for ancillary expenses to support retention

 3

  Create classroom technology plans

  Formalize a process to decrease redundant technology purchases

  Evaluate the organization/staffing of ITS

  Update the Campus Master Plan

  Determine a plan to address the May Street building

  Work with DCAMM on improvements to the LRC and Student Center

  Work with the MSCBA to address Chandler Village

  Assess current space utilization and re-allocate space

  Address accelerated end-of-useful-life and higher deferred maintenance costs

 4

  Utilize a transparent budgeting process that evaluates budget levels regularly

   Digitize administrative forms and function

   Approve a remote and flexible work plan

   Conduct an equity audit

  Embrace an entrepreneurial culture

  Examine the structure separating day and DGCE programs

 5
  Design redundant systems and staffing capacities

  Automate business functions 

 6   Achieve cost savings through off-setting equipment and net metering credits



APPENDIX C - REVISIONS
Strategies and Initiatives

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | C-1

Goal 1: Academic Excellence & Distinction
Initiatives

Does not include minor changes in wording.
2022-2023 Revisions in blue.

Moved: "Support interdisciplinary teaching" from Goal 3.

Moved: "Support graduate student research" from Goal 3. 

Changed: "Secure approvals for majors in Art, Political Science, and Theater" to 
"Develop new programs to align with workforce needs and student interest". 

Changed: "Create a webpage/forum for faculty to share ideas with each other" to 
"Provide opportunities for faculty to share ideas with each other".

Suspended: “Pursue approvals to offer an Occupational Therapy doctorate” due to 
state regulations. 

Suspended: “Encourage everyone teaching online to be certified by some process” 
until Blackboard upgrade is completed. 

Suspended: “Establish a set of targeted areas related to digital literacy” while LASC 
revisions are underway.

Suspended: “Create a university portfolio initiative” due to financial constraints.

Removed: “Create a 'Leadership Across the Curriculum' LASC requirement” as LASC no 
longer has "Across the Curriculum" elements.

Removed: “Create greater opportunities for summer IELI programs” as summer 
programs for residential high school students is not a financially viable idea.



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | C-1

Goal 2: Student Support & Success
Initiatives

Added: "Increase first-year retention rates".

Added: "Increase 6-year graduation rates".

Added: "Reduce first-year retention rate gap between ALANA/BIPOC and white 
students".

Added: "Reduce 6-year graduation rate gap between ALANA/BIPOC and white 
students".

Added: "Champion a student-centered approach to all university operations".

Moved: "Improve the registration process and advising for graduate students" from 
Goal 3.

Changed: "Continue to support current practices such as CLEP testing" with "Continue 
to offer practices that allow for transfer credit equivalencies".

Combined  "Strengthen and expand the Transfer Success Coach program" and "Offer 
additional Transfer Orientation dates" into "Facilitate transfer student transition and 
success".

Changed: “Expand and enhance the support graduate students receive from the 
Library and Student Affairs” to “Incorporate graduate student-specific resources in all 
support offices”.

Changed: “Create a working group to address the needs of Worcester State’s 
international student population” to “Address international student needs”.

Changed: “Enhance supports to improve the sense of belonging of transfer, commuter, 
and first-generation students” to “Improve student belonging, particularly among 
students from under-served and under-represented groups".

Suspended: “Develop and implement a mandatory 1-credit New Transfer Seminar” 
while awaiting new grant staff to pursue grant funding. 

Removed: "Develop programs for unmet needs in student leadership" as it is covered 
under "Enhance leadership opportunities for students".

Removed: "Ensure adequate/appropriate resources are available to non-traditional-
age learners" as it is covered under "Ensure all students have the technology and tools 
necessary for academic success".

Removed: “Encourage the approval of a co-curricular transcript” as this type of 
transcript is no longer in use at many universities across the country.



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | C-2

Goal 3: Marketing & Enrollment
Initiatives

Added “Promote Worcester State's rich history”.

Moved "Increase the degrees that can be completed online or in the evening" from 
Goal 1.

Combined “Create a faculty speaking program at high schools” and “Develop a young 
alumni program as liaisons for their high school alma maters” with “Partner with high 
schools and community colleges”.

Changed “Provide comprehensive academic support in first-year experience either by 
expanding Summer Bridge or creating a ‘Fall Cluster’ for first-generation students and 
students from under-represented groups” to “Provide comprehensive support for first-
generation and ALANA/BIPOC students”.

Goal 4: Community Engagement & Public Good
Strategies
Combined “Expand relationships with business in Worcester and Beyond” with “Foster 
ongoing interaction between the University and the community”.

Initiatives

Changed “Establish a ‘Community Collaborative’ within Academic Affairs to support 
community- focused academic endeavors that connect faculty and students 
with the Worcester-area community to address challenges interdisciplinarily and 
collaboratively” to “Develop community focused endeavors that address local 
challenges”.

Suspended “Implement a Volunteer Day for employees to contribute to Worcester and 
local areas in a visible way” until Civic Engagement Center is fully staffed. 

Suspended “Intentionally have faculty and staff be present at Five Chambers events” 
and “Provide students opportunities to attend Chamber events” due to financial 
constraints. 

Removed “Offer annual bus tours of Worcester for all new staff and faculty as well as 
members of Leadership Council” due to financial constraints. 



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | C-2

Goal 5: People & Culture
Strategies
Changed: “Foster a culture of assessment and data-based decision making” to “Foster 
a culture of continuous improvement and data-informed decision making”.

Initiatives
Added: “Review, prioritize, and implement the FSTF recommendations”.

Added: “Optimize processes to improve efficiency and effectiveness”.

Moved: "Recruit and retain under-represented and marginalized faculty and staff" from 
Goal 3. 

Changed:  "Create new awards to recognize faculty and staff accomplishments" to 
"Recognize faculty and staff accomplishments through awards and other benefits".

Suspended: “Implement a more systematic and intentional method of inviting, 
securing, and hosting visiting international scholars and faculty” due to financial and 
logistical constraints. 

Suspended: “Develop a policy to reimburse for costs associated with the maintenance 
of professional credentials” due to financial and bargaining constraints. 



Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | C-3

Goal 6: Resources & Infrastructure
Initiatives

Added: “Explore opportunities reduce cost and/or increase revenue”.

Added: "Update the Campus Master Plan".

Added: "Increase the endowment".

Replaced: “Increase unrestricted endowment to 20-25 percent of total endowment 
value” to “Increase the amount of financial support transferred to the University”.

Replaced: “Increase unrestricted endowment dollars by communicating
with donors the importance and benefits of unrestricted endowment” with "Raise 
funds for ancillary expenses to support retention".

Replaced: “Increase the number of buildings that have options to off-set electricity 
with “Achieve cost savings through electricity off-setting equipment and net metering 
credits”.

Suspended: “Include technology upgrades and maintenance in budget” while waiting 
for input from ITS. 

Suspended: “Evaluate net-zero or near-net-zero building for any new building” while 
there is no new construction. 

Suspended: “Plan for replacement fleet vehicles to be fully electric or hybrid vehicles” 
due to financial constraints.

Suspended: "Revise the Climate Action Plan" and "Join organizations related to climate 
change efforts in higher education" as the position of Sustainability Coordinator no 
longer exists. 

Removed: “Develop more non-credit courses and programs to be taught through the 
Center for Business and Industry by Worcester State faculty and staff” as the Center for 
Business and Industry has been sunset. 

Removed: “Utilize campus during off-times for programs that will pay to use our space” 
as this is already established practice. 

Removed: “Develop more non-credit courses and programs to be taught through the 
Center for Business and Industry by Worcester State faculty and staff” as the Center for 
Business and Industry has been sunset. 

Removed: “Work with the city and state to increase the frequency of buses for 
Worcester State” due to financial limitations.



ALANA/BIPOC African, Latine, Asian, Native American/Black, Indigenous, People of 
Color

AOP Accelerated Online Program
ASC Academic Success Center
CLEP College-Level Examination Program
CTL Center for Teaching and Learning
DCAMM Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance
DEIJ Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Justice
DGCE Division of Graduate and Continuing Education
DHE Massachusetts Department of Higher Education
FTE Full-time Equivalent
FYE First Year Experience
FYS First Year Seminar
HECCMA Higher Education Consortium of Central Massachusetts
ITS Information Technology Services
LASC Liberal Arts and Science Curriculum (general education)
LEI Latino Education Institute
LGBTQ+ Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer/Questioning, and others
LRC Learning Resource Center
MARCOM Marketing and Communications
MCPHS Massachusetts College of Pharmacy and Health Sciences
MEMA Massachusetts Emergency Management Agency
MSCBA Massachusetts State College Building Authority
NECHE New England Commission of Higher Education 
OER Open Educational Resources
OMA Office of Multicultural Affairs
OSILD Office of Student Involvement and Leadership Development
QCC Quinsigamond Community College
RASE Roadmap for Advancing Student Excellence
SAS Student Accessibility Services
WPS Worcester Public Schools

APPENDIX D - GLOSSARY

Worcester State University | Strategic Plan Progress | D-1




	BOT Full Agenda June 11
	1B.1 April 9 Full Bot meeting minutes
	1B.2 April 9 Academic and Student Development Meeting minutes
	1B.3 May 14 Nominating Committee Meeting minutes
	2A OpEx Update for BOT 6-11-24
	Slide Number 1
	Presentation Outline
	Operational Excellence - Overview and Objectives
	FSTF vs non-FSTF Operational Excellence Projects
	Slide Number 5
	Some examples of Non-FSTF Projects/Activities
	Non-FSTF Projects/Activities
	Operational Excellence Website (Intranet)
	Operational Excellence Website (Intranet) – Status Page 
	Slide Number 10
	Visual Performing Arts (“VPA”) Waivers: A Case Study
	Visual Performing Arts Tool Use Forms: A Case Study
	Slide Number 13
	FSTF Phase II Recommendation Status Update 
	FSTF Pending Items
	Priority: ‘High’ Impact Projects
	Priority – ‘Medium’ Financial Impact
	Low Financial Impact (lower priority) 
	Rapid Improvement Events: Lessons Learned (for future projects) 
	Demonstration Projects Update – Course Scheduling
	UPDATED W/ UNDUPLICATED HEADCOUNT
	Demonstration Projects Update – Course Scheduling
	Demonstration Projects Update: Early Support 
	Demonstration Projects Update: Early Support 
	Slide Number 25
	Operational Excellence Other Projects on the Horizon
	Operational Excellence Proposed Future Activities FY25
	Operational Excellence

	3A Board of Trustees Presentation Slides
	4A June 11, 2024 Finance and Facilities Meeting Packet
	Finance & Facilities Agenda
	1B.1 April 9 Finance and Facilities meeting minutes
	2A FY 2025 Comprehensive University Budget
	2B Q3 FY 2024

	Human Resources Committee Packet - June 11, 2024
	June 11 Human Resources AGENDA
	1B.1 April 4, 2024 BoT Human Resources Committee meeting minutes.pdf
	B. Maloney ltr to BoT re Hank's Promotion Recommendation Letter (2)
	L. Wims support ltr to B. Maloney (1)
	Associate Provost JD
	Theriault CV 2024 (1)
	TEACHING EXPERIENCE
	“Rethinking Dehumanization in Genocide,” in The Armenian Genocide:  Cultural and Ethical Legacies, edited by Richard Hovannisian (New Brunswick, NJ:  Transaction Publishers, 2007)
	“Free Speech and Denial:  The Case of the Armenian Genocide,” in Looking Backward, Moving Forward:  Confronting the Armenian Genocide, edited by Richard G. Hovannisian (New Brunswick, NJ:  Transaction Publishers, 2003)
	“Universal Social Theory and the Denial of Genocide:  Norman Itzkowitz Revisited,” Journal of Genocide Research 3:2 (June 2001)
	 Reprinted in Defining the Horrific:  Readings on Genocide and Holocaust in the Twentieth Century, edited by William L. Hewitt (Pearson-Prentice Hall, 2004)
	Interviewed in “Völkermord könnte für Türkei teuer warden”


	Division of Academic Affairs Org Chart for BOT (1)
	Division�
	Academic Success�
	Future Org�


	6A May-14-Nominating-Committee-meeting-packet-1
	1 Agenda May 14 -Nominating Committee - Google Docs
	2.A BOT SLATE OF OFFICERS 2023-2024
	BOT Terms_appoint dates - updated 5_2_2024 .docx
	Board of Trustees By-Laws -Updated 1_19_2021

	6B 2024_2025 BoT Slate of Officers
	7A.I BOT 2024 - 2025 meeting dates
	7C.I President_s Update June 2024 (final)
	7.CII WSU Strategic Plan 3rd Year Progress Final



